
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Workshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop Agenda
Board of Commissioners


July 6, 2011


 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order.


Acceptance of Agenda.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures,


decorum and rules of order used for conducting County Commission


meetings. 


2. Consideration of further information related to the relocation of the Office of


Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).


3. Consideration of a request from Community Development Director Pete


Frisina to send a letter to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs


(DCA) requesting deferral of deadlines for updates of the County’s


Comprehensive Plan and Solid Waste Management Plan, as allowed by DCA.


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendations related to funding the costs of


stormwater management.


NEW BUSINESS:


5. Consideration of a request from Commissioner McCarty that the Board


consider establishing a formal set of standards to be used whenever the


County acquires privately-owned property for the construction of a public


facility. 


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Health Department Jack Krakeel/Glenda Bryant


Consideration of further information related to the relocation of the Office of Women, Infants, and Children (WIC).


Currently the District 4 WIC Program is located inside the Health Department in the Administrative Complex. Efforts have been underway 


for many months to find a new location for this service. Health District 4 submitted a funding request to the state WIC office which was 


approved to pay for the relocation of a WIC building purchased from Coweta County to house the Fayette County WIC Program. The 


funds can be used for moving the building, relocation costs, and site preparation.  Once the building is in place, local District 4 WIC funds 


will  pay the ongoing monthly expenses (utilities, janitorial services, telephone, internet, etc.).  The county originally identified a number of 


possible sites for the WIC Building and the state WIC office has approved a potential site off McDonough Road (where the mulch is 


currently stored).   


 


The District 4 WIC Program is also interested in the possibility of co-locating on the site of the Fayette County Department of Family and 


Children Services on Highway 85 south.  This location is ideal since the programs serve many of the same families and the location is 


much closer to the Fayette County Health Department where all the WIC Participants are referred for health services. If the county 


approves allowing the WIC Building to be located to a site it owns, the District 4 WIC Program would like to allocate its funds to the 


county for the site preparation and other associated costs. 


Further direction is needed.


Not Applicable


Yes Wednesday, June 1, 2011


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, July 6, 2011








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner McCarty


Consideration of a request from Commissioner McCarty that the Board consider establishing a formal set of standards to be used 


whenever the County acquires privately-owned property for the construction of a public facility.


Whenever counties and cities acquire private property for transportation projects where Georgia Department of Transportation funds are 


used to pay for any part of the project, the local government is required to use GDOT's guidelines for acquiring the property. GDOT's 


guidelines are based on federal regulations known as the Uniform Relocation Act. Fayette County complies with these requirements 


anytime state funds are used to pay any of the cost of the project. 


 


However, Fayette County from time to time acquires property for a number of public purposes where no state or federal funds are used. 


These projects could be road or bridge improvements, reservoirs, buildings, parks, etc. Commissioner McCarty would like have a 


discussion about the County adopting its own set of standard to be used any time the County must acquire private property for the 


purpose of building any type of county-owned project, regardless of what the project is. These standards would meet or exceed GDOT's 


guidelines and could be published and distributed any time a property owner is expected to negotiate the acquisition of property with the 


County. 


 


Commissioner McCarty would like to discuss this issue and if a consensus is reached, staff would prepare a draft document for review by 


Board at its August 3rd Workshop.


Discussion of  this issue. If the Board reaches a consensus to move this new initiative forward, direction will need to be given to 


appropriate staff who can prepare this topic for further consideration at the August Workshop.


N/A


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Commissioner submitted this agenda request with back-up material to the County Clerk on June 14, 2011.


New BusinessWednesday, July 6, 2011







 
Date:  June 14, 2011 
 
To:  County Commissioners 
  Jack Krakeel, Administrator 
  Scott Bennett, County Attorney 
 
From:  Allen McCarty, Commissioner 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item of July 6 Workshop for discussion reference the acquisition of private property 
 
Naturally, since I became a County Commissioner, I have heard a great deal about the County’s 
acquisition of privately‐owned property for public purposes, particularly as this process relates to the 
West Fayetteville Bypass. The topic became interesting to me so I have read about it, listened to 
property owners, listened to county staff and have inquired about how others work through the 
process.  
 
To make a long story short, Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) distributes to a small 
publication to land owners when they enter negotiations for right‐of‐way they need in order to improve 
a state road. The booklet, called What Happens When Your Property Is Needed For A Transportation 
Facility”, outlines what a property owner can expect from the government as the process goes forward. I 
also understand that GDOT requires counties and cities that use state monies on a local road project to 
use GDOT’s guidelines if land is to be acquired by the County for that project; and that Fayette County 
complies with the state’s requirements in those circumstances. 
 
I respectfully ask that the Commissioners have a discussion about adopting its own set of formal 
guidelines for acquiring private property, not only for road projects but for all projects built by Fayette 
County for public purposes. Like GDOT, we could publish and distribute our policy to property owners 
who will be expected to negotiate with the County. I have talked with the County Attorney and he will 
be able to prepare a draft document for your review at the August 3rd Workshop, if there is a consensus 
to move forward with my request. Of course, our standards would meet or exceed GDOT’s guidelines so 
that we can continue to comply with their requirements when state funds are involved.  
 
Let me be as forthright about this issue as I can possibly be. I understand that state or federal funds are 
not paying for most of our Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) projects thus far, including 
the West Bypass, so perhaps the guidelines the state uses may not have applied thus far when the 
County has negotiated with property owners along the Bypass. However, naturally, if we do adopt our 
own set of standards, I would be interested in knowing if, going forward on the Bypass, these new 
guidelines could possibly apply. Regardless of the answer to that question, I would like to see the County 
adopt its own standards for all Fayette County projects in the future.  
 
I asked staff to place this item on our July Workshop Agenda, along with a copy of the booklet GDOT 
distributes for your reference. I realize that changing the County’s approach could possibly have a 
financial impact on the County in some cases, but I am likewise concerned about the financial impact 
our projects can have on affected members of our public. This is not an issue that has been without its 
problems, as you know. 
 
I look forward to talking with you about this and will appreciate your thoughts. Thank you. 
 





		Commissioners- McCarty Agenda Reques File.pdf

		Commissioners- McCarty Policy Request










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Consideration of a proposed Ordinance which addresses the procedures, decorum and rules of order used for conducting County 


Commission meetings.


At the Board's June 1 Workshop, the Board discussed a model ordinance published by the Association of County Commissioners of 


Georgia which addresses all aspects of what happens at a public County Commission meeting. Staff was directed to assemble a similar 


ordinance that the Board could discuss that might be suitable for Fayette County or that the Board could initiate its discussion from. If an 


ordinance results from the discussion, the County's existing ordinance would be deleted and replaced with the new, more comprehensive 


one. The existing ordinance, known as "Article II. Board of Commissioners  Division 2. Rules of Procedure" of the Fayette County Code 


of Ordinances only addresses the existing Rules of Order used by the Board during its meetings (in lieu of Roberts Rules of Order).  


 


(The Association of County Commissioners of Georgia is a professional organization for counties. ACCG advocates for counties in 


statewide matters, offers training to county elected officials and personnel, and offers a host of services (insurance, benefits, etc) to 


counties where discounts can be had because of the "pool" or "group" created when counties join together for quantity discounts on 


goods and services. ACCG produces publications that aid in developing consistency county-to-county in the delivery of services and the 


interpretation and application of laws involving county government.) 


 


This item will likely require considerable discussion. At the conclusion of the discussion, whether at this meeting or a future meeting, staff 


will need direction on how to proceed.


Not Applicable.


Yes Wednesday, June 1, 2011


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, July 6, 2011







STATE OF GEORGIA; 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE 
COUNTY, GEORGIA CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 


WHEREAS, well-organized meetings allow a board of commissioners to reach decisions in a fair 
and consistent manner; 


WHEREAS, efficiency is served when the process of planning for and conducting public 
meetings is clearly stated and understood by public officials and citizens; and 


WHEREAS, public participation and access to the governmental decision-making process is a 
key element of our democratic system. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, 
GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Division II of Article II Board of Commissioners, of Chapter 2 Administration of the 
Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as 
follows: 
 


Sec. 2-36. Open Meetings.   


All meetings of the board of commissioners shall be held in accordance with the 
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1 et seq. The public shall at all times be afforded access 
to all meetings other than executive sessions. 


Sec. 2-37. Executive Sessions.  


(a) As provided below or in accordance with Georgia law, the board may close a 
portion of a meeting to the public to discuss certain topics that are exempted from the 
Open Meetings Law. Such meetings shall be referred to as executive sessions. Any 
portion of the meeting not subject to any exemptions authorized by law shall be open to 
the public. 


(b)  Executive Sessions. Executive sessions of the board may be held for the purpose 
of discussing topics exempted from public access requirements by O.C.G.A. §§ 50-14-2 
and 50-14-3, including, but not limited to: 


(1) Pending or Potential Litigation. The board may close an open meeting to 
discuss topics subject to the attorney client privilege to the extent the 
commissioners consult and meet with the county attorney or other legal counsel 
to discuss pending or potential litigation, settlement, claims, administrative 
proceedings or other judicial actions brought by or against the county, a county 
official or employee. The county attorney or other attorney representing the 


1 
 







county must be present in the executive session. In order to close a meeting 
because of potential litigation, there must be a real and tangible threat of legal 
action indicated by a formal demand letter or other writing presenting a claim or 
a sincere intention to sue, previous or pre-existing litigation between the county 
and the other party or the hiring of an attorney by the threatening party. 


(2) Personnel Matters. The board may close an open meeting to discuss or 
deliberate on the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary 
action, dismissal or evaluation of a county official or employee except that the 
commissioners must receive evidence or hear arguments on proposed 
disciplinary action or dismissal of a county official or employee in an open 
meeting. Any votes by the board must be taken in an open meeting and be 
entered in the minutes of the open meeting. 


(3) Real Estate Acquisition by the County. The board may close an open meeting 
to discuss the future purchase of real estate. The board is required to keep 
minutes of an executive session held to discuss the acquisition of real estate as 
provided in paragraph (1) of subsection (f) of Section 2 of this ordinance. 


(4) Records that Could Compromise Public Security. The board may close an 
open meeting to review or discuss records that, if made public, would endanger 
life, safety or public property by compromising security against sabotage, 
criminal acts or terrorist acts. Such records include, but are not limited to, 
security plans, vulnerability assessments for public buildings or facilities, anti-
terrorist plans, plans or blueprints that reveal security devices or otherwise 
compromise security and contingency plans for meetings. 


(c)  Procedure for Entering into Executive Sessions. An executive session shall not be 
held except pursuant to a majority affirmative vote of the board members present taken in 
an open meeting. The minutes of the open meeting shall reflect the names of the 
commissioners present, those voting for the executive session, and the specific reasons 
for the executive session. 


(d)  Who Can Attend Executive Sessions. Board members and only individuals 
necessary to conduct an executive session may be present. The clerk of the board of 
commissioners and the county administrator shall be included in any executive session 
approved by the board of commissioners unless expressly barred by majority vote of the 
board members present prior to or during the course of an executive session.  The county 
attorney or other attorney representing the board must be included in any executive 
session pertaining to litigation or claims against the county. Other individuals may be 
invited to participate in an executive session by majority vote of the board members 
present prior to or during the course of the executive session but only if the presence of 
such individuals is consistent with the applicable exception authorizing the executive 
session.  No other individuals shall be permitted in the executive session. 


(e)  Non-Exempt Topics. If a commissioner or any other person in an executive 
session attempts to discuss a non-exempt topic during an executive session, the Chair 
shall immediately rule that commissioner or other person out of order and such 
discussion shall cease. If the commissioner or other person persists in discussing the non-
exempt topic, the Chair shall either cause the person or commissioner to be removed 
from the executive session or adjourn the meeting immediately. 


2 
 







(f)  Executive Session Minutes. 


(1) Executive Sessions Discussing Real Estate Acquisition. Minutes of an 
executive session in which the acquisition of real estate is discussed shall be 
taken in the same manner as minutes of an open meeting and shall be made 
available for public inspection except that any portion of the minutes identifying 
the real estate shall be redacted until such time as the acquisition of the real estate 
has been completed, terminated, abandoned or until court proceedings have been 
initiated.  


(2) Other Executive Sessions. Minutes of executive sessions devoted to any topic 
other than land acquisition may be taken and maintained by the clerk at the 
direction of the Chair. Any such minutes shall be maintained in a confidential file 
and shall not be subject to disclosure. 


(g)  Chair or Presiding Officer Affidavit. The Chair or other presiding officer shall 
execute an affidavit stating, under oath, that the executive session was devoted to topics 
exempt from the public access requirements. The affidavit shall include the specific 
exemption to the Open Meetings Law. The affidavit shall be notarized and filed with the 
minutes of the open meeting. 


(h)  Discussion of Executive Session Business. Commissioners, officials, employees 
and other individuals who attend executive sessions are prohibited from discussing or in 
any other way disclosing confidential information, legal advice and/or legal strategy 
discussed in the executive session unless: 


(1) The disclosure is required by law; 


(2) The disclosure is part of a judicial or administrative proceeding; or 


(3) Three members of the board authorizes the disclosure.  


In no way shall this subsection prevent a county attorney or other attorney representing 
the board from discussing any matters discussed in executive session relative to 
settlement or negotiation of a lawsuit or other claim against the county. Any 
commissioner that divulges has previously divulged or has threatened to divulge 
confidential information, legal advice or strategy discussion may be excluded from 
participation in an executive session by affirmative vote of three commissioners. A 
commissioner that divulges confidential information, legal advice, or strategy discussions 
may be a publicly sanctioned by a majority affirmative vote of the board of 
commissioners. 


Sec. 2-38.  Visual and Sound Recordings.  


Visual, sound, and visual and sound recordings shall be permitted for all open 
meetings. 


Sec. 2-39. Quorum.  


3 
 







(a) A quorum must be present for conducting meetings of the board. A quorum is a 
majority of all of the members of the board then in office. It is the duty of the Chair to 
enforce this rule. 


(b) Any commissioner may raise a point of order directed to the Chair if he or she 
believes that a quorum is not present. If, during the course of a meeting, a commissioner 
or commissioners leave and a quorum no longer exists, the meeting may not continue. If 
a quorum is not attained within thirty minutes, the meeting may be rescheduled by the 
Chair with the approval of a majority of the commissioners present.  
 
(c) No official action shall be taken except upon the affirmative vote of at least three 
members of the commission. The chairman shall be entitled to the same voting rights as 
other members of the board of commissioners on questions considered by the 
commission.  
 
Sec. 2-40. Chair.  
 
The Chair of the board of commissioners, as presiding officer, is responsible for the 
orderly conduct of the meeting. In order to fulfill this duty, the Chair shall enforce the 
rules of procedure that are adopted by the board of commissioners. The Chair shall be 
impartial and conduct the meetings in a fair manner. The Chair may introduce motions or 
second motions. 
 
Sec. 2-41. Vice-Chair.  


The board shall select a vice-Chair from the board members at the beginning of each 
calendar year. The vice-Chair shall fulfill the duties of the Chair if the Chair is not in 
attendance.  


Section 2-42. Presiding Officer.  


If the Chair and the vice-Chair are absent or otherwise unable to serve as presiding 
officer at a meeting and a quorum of commissioners is present, the remaining 
commissioners shall select a commissioner to serve as presiding officer of the meeting 
until either the Chair or vice-Chair is present at the meeting. 


Section 2-43. Parliamentarian. The county attorney shall serve as the parliamentarian 
for board meetings. 


Section 2-44. Rules of Order.  


(a)  Call to order.  If, at the time of a meeting, the chairman determines that all 
commissioners have been notified or an attempt has been made to notify all 
commissioners and that a quorum of the board of commissioners is present, he shall have 
the authority to call the meeting to order. The call to order shall not require any preceding 
action but may be issued solely by the authority of the chairman.  
 
(b)  Motions—General requirement.  The board of commissioners can take action 
only when a motion to take such action is made and passed by the board.  
 


(1)  Procedure. 


4 
 







 
a.  Before a motion can be discussed or voted upon by the board of 
commissioners, it must be presented to the board by a member of the 
board. The presentment is made by merely stating the motion.  
 
b.  Immediately after the motion is presented to the board, the chairman 
shall ask for a commissioner to second the motion. If the motion is not 
seconded, it shall fail for lack of a second and can not be remade until the 
next meeting of the board, except as otherwise provided herein.  
 
c.  If the motion is seconded, the chairman shall immediately ask for 
discussion of the motion. Discussion of the motion shall be limited to the 
board of commissioners and shall relate solely to the motion on hand; 
however, any commissioner may question a member of the audience or 
staff provided such question shall pertain strictly to the motion on hand.  
 
d.  Upon the conclusion of discussion, the chairman shall cause the 
motion to be restated and shall then call the question. 
 


(2)  Amendment. 
 


a.  An amendment may be suggested by any member of the board. The 
amendment shall be suggested only during the discussion of the original 
motion.  
 
b.  A motion can be amended only with the consent of the commissioner 
making the motion. If the commissioner who seconded the original 
motion disagrees with the amendment, he shall be allowed to withdraw 
his second. When a second is withdrawn, the chairman shall immediately 
request a new second to the amended motion.  
 
c.  After a motion is amended and seconded, the chairman shall call for 
discussion and proceed with the consideration of the motion in the 
manner provided above.  
 


(3)  Withdrawal. 
 


a.  Any motion may be withdrawn at the discretion of the commissioner 
making the motion. 
 
b.  Motions may be withdrawn at any time prior to but not during nor 
after the restating of the motion by the chairman. 
 


(4)  Tabling. 
 


a.  During the discussion of a motion, the motion may be tabled for 
further discussion by the board upon the motion of any commissioner 
other than the commissioner who made the original motion.  


 
b.  The motion to table shall specify the time and place for the continued 
discussion. 


5 
 







 
c.  Discussion of the original motion shall immediately cease when a 
motion to table is made. 


 
d.  A motion to table shall not require a second but shall require 
discussion, restating the motion and a call of the question. 


 
(5) Reconsideration. 


 
a.  A motion, which has been passed or defeated, or which fails for lack 
of a second, may be reconsidered by the board of commissioners during 
the same meeting provided the board pass a motion for reconsideration. 
Otherwise, the original motion may not be presented to the board again 
until its next meeting.  


 
b.  A motion for reconsideration can only be made by a commissioner 
who voted against the original motion, if defeated, or in favor of the 
original motion, if passed. Otherwise, any commissioner may make a 
motion for reconsideration.  


 
(6)  Vote. 


 
a.  A commissioner in favor of a motion shall say “aye” while holding up 
his/her right hand. 
 
b.  A commissioner against a motion shall say “nay” while holding up 
his/her right hand. 
 
c.  A commissioner present but refusing to vote shall be recorded as 
abstaining. 
 
d.  A unanimous passing vote shall mean a vote in which all members of 
the board of commissioners present vote in favor of the motion.  
 
e.  The preceding procedures apply to all votes taken by the board of 
commissioners except for the annual election of the chairman and vice-
chairman of the board of commissioners. The annual election of the 
chairman and vice-chairman of the board of commissioners shall be 
conducted by any legal voting method which shall be agreed upon prior 
to the election.  
 


(c)   Ordinances.  The passage of all ordinances must be accomplished by motion.  
 
(d)   Special motions – Call the question. 
 


(1)  During the discussion of any motion, any commissioner may move to call the 
question in order to end discussion and have the vote on the pending motion.  


 
(2)  When a commissioner has moved to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall cease and the chairman shall immediately restate the motion 


6 
 







and then proceed with a vote on whether to call the question. A second of a 
motion to call the question shall not be necessary.  


 
(3)  If the vote is in favor of the motion to call the question, the chairman shall 
immediately call the question on the original motion.  


 
(4)  If the vote is against the motion to call the question, discussion of the 
original motion shall continue. 


 
(e)   Special motions – Continuance. 
 


(1)  During the discussion of any motion, any commissioner may move for a 
continuance in order to have any particular item continued to the next meeting. A 
motion for continuance requires a second, however, no vote shall be necessary 
for the continuance to take effect.  


 
(2)  When a commissioner has moved for a continuance, discussion of the agenda 
item shall cease once the motion receives a second. A motion for continuance 
accompanied by a second shall automatically place the subject item on the 
agenda for the next scheduled meeting of the board of commissioners.  


 
(3)  If the motion for a continuance does not receive a second, the motion shall 
die for the lack of a second. 


 
(4)  There shall be no more than one continuance allowed for any one (1) agenda 
item. 


 
(f)   Point of order. 
 


(1)  Whenever a commissioner has a question as to the procedure being followed 
by the chairman, he may raise a point of order. A point of order requires no 
second.  
 
(2)  Upon the raising of a point of order, the chairman shall stop the meeting and 
the commissioner shall state his question. The meeting shall continue after a 
determination of the question has been rendered by the chairman.  


 
(g)   Out of order. 
 


(1)  The chairman shall have the authority to cite any individual out of order 
when that individual, in the opinion of the chairman, violates these rules of 
procedure.  
 
(2)  No other action shall be required in citing an individual out of order. 
 
(3)  When an individual has been cited as out of order, the chairman shall state 
the reasons therefor and shall give the individual directions regarding compliance 
with these rules.  
 


(h)   Adjournment. 
 


7 
 







(1)  Adjournment of the meeting must be by motion. 
 
(2)  A motion to adjourn does not require a second but does require discussion. 
 
(3)  When a motion to adjourn is passed, the board of commissioners can no 
longer act until another meeting is called to order. 
 


(i)   Public discussion. 
 


(a)  Whenever public discussion of a matter before the board of commissioners is 
allowed, any member of the public shall have the right to discuss the matter at 
hand prior to the presentment of the motion.  
 
(b)  The right of a member of the public to discuss a matter before the board shall 
be limited to three (3) minutes per topic, unless as otherwise granted by special 
permission of the chairman.  
 
(c)  All discussion shall relate solely to the matter at hand. 
 


(j)  Vice-chairman references.  All references in this division to chairman shall also 
include the vice-chairman when the vice-chairman is conducting the meeting.   
 
(k)  Action chart.  Actions shall be taken on motions as follows: 
 
Type Second Discussion Vote Priority 
Regular motion x x x None 
Amendment x x x None 
Withdrawal of motion None None None x 
Table None x x x 
Continuance x None None x 
Reconsideration x x x x 
Call the question None None x x 
Point of order None x None x 
Out of order None x None x 
Adjournment 
 


None x x None 


Section 2-45. Suspending the Rules of Procedure.  


Rules of procedure may be suspended in the case of an emergency. A motion to 
suspend the rules requires a second, is debatable, and requires three votes of the board. 
Rules governing quorums, voting methods and requirements, notification to 
commissioners of meetings and rules necessary for compliance with state law may not be 
suspended; provided, however, that, in the event that a state of emergency is declared by 
the Governor or other authorized state official, the board may waive time-consuming 
procedures and formalities imposed by state law. 


8 
 







Section 2-46. Regular Meetings.  


The board of commissioners shall establish a schedule for regular meetings at its 
first meeting of each year.  The schedule shall state the time and place for each meeting.  
A notice containing the foregoing information shall be posted and maintained in a 
conspicuous place available to the general public at the regular meeting place of the 
board.  


Section 2-47. Meetings Other Than Regular Meetings.  


(a)   The board may meet at times and locations other than those regularly scheduled 
meetings. 


(b)   Special Meetings and Rescheduled Regular Meetings.   A regular meeting may 
be canceled, rescheduled or moved to a new location within the county site by the Chair 
for any reason.  Other special meetings may be scheduled by the Chair or at the request of 
at least two commissioners. Whenever a rescheduled regular meeting or any other special 
meeting is to be held at a time or place other than the regularly scheduled time or place, 
written notice of the change shall be posted for at least 24 hours at the regular meeting 
place. In addition, written or oral notice shall be given by the clerk at least 24 hours in 
advance of the meeting to either the legal organ of the county or a newspaper having 
general circulation at least equal to that of the legal organ, as well as to each member of 
the county governing authority. 


(c)   Meetings with Less Than 24 Hours Notice. When emergency circumstances 
occur, the board may hold a meeting with less than 24 hours notice to the public. When 
such meetings are to be held, the clerk shall provide notice to the legal organ of the 
county or a newspaper with a general circulation at least equal to that of the legal organ 
and to each member of the county governing authority as soon as possible. The notice 
shall include the subjects expected to be considered at the meeting. In addition, the 
minutes shall reflect the reason for the emergency meeting and the nature of the notice 
given to the media. 


(d)  Meetings during a State of Emergency. When it is imprudent, inexpedient or 
impossible to hold board meetings at the regular meeting place due to emergency or 
disaster resulting from manmade or natural causes, as declared by the Governor or other 
authorized state official, the board may meet anywhere within or outside of the county.  
Such a meeting may be called by the Chair or by any two commissioners. At the meeting, 
the commissioners shall establish and designate emergency temporary meeting locations 
where public business may be transacted during the emergency. Any action taken in such 
meetings shall have the same effect as if performed at the regular meeting site. 


Section 2-48. Order of Business. All regular board meetings shall substantially follow 
an established order of business. The order shall be as follows: 


I. Call to order 


II.  Invocation 


III.   Recognitions, Proclamations, and Awards 


9 
 







IV.   Public Hearings 


V.   Public Comment 


VI  Consent agenda 


VII.  Old business 


VIII.  New business 


IX.  Reports (Administrator, Attorney, Departments, Board Members) 


X.   Executive Session 


XI.  Adjournment 


Section 2-49. Agenda.  


The Agenda shall be prepared in accordance with the Fayette County Policies 
and Procedures Manual. 


Section 2-50. Consent Agenda.  


A consent agenda may be prepared by the county administrator for the board to 
unanimously adopt on routine items. Any items of business that are expected to receive 
unanimous approval without debate may be placed on a consent agenda.  If a 
commissioner objects to an item being on the consent agenda, the Chair shall move that 
particular item to the regular agenda.  The Chair may ask for unanimous approval of the 
items on the consent agenda. If there are no objections, all the items on the consent 
agenda shall be approved by a vote of three members of the board. 


Section 2-51. Decorum.  


The Chair shall enforce the rules of decorum. The purpose of meetings of the 
board of commissioners is to conduct the county’s business. Meetings shall be conducted 
in an orderly and respectful fashion. They are not a forum to belittle, ridicule or 
embarrass county commissioners, other county officials, county employees, or others. 


(a)  Conduct of Members of the Board of Commissioners. 


(1) Commissioners should arrive on time for a meeting and be prepared. 


(2) Commissioners should attend the entire meeting. 


(3) Cell phones or other communications devices shall be turned off or in silent         
mode. 


(4) Commissioners should not take phone calls or check emails, social 
networking sites, chat rooms or other internet sites during a meeting. 


(5) Commissioners shall conduct themselves in a professional and respectful 
manner.  


10 
 







(6) Commissioners desiring to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(7) Commissioners may only address the motion that is being discussed. 


(8) Commissioners shall direct their remarks to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff, or citizens in attendance. 


(9) Only one commissioner at a time is permitted to speak. Commissioners shall 
not interrupt any other person who has the floor. 


(10) Personal attacks and inappropriate remarks shall be ruled out of order by the 
Chair. Commissioners may not use commission meetings to make derogatory 
comments about particular employees or to air their personal grievances with 
other commissioners. 


(11) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


(12) Remarks may not address the character of the person involved. 


(13) Commissioners shall not confront other board members, department heads, 
employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(14) Commissioners may raise a point of order if a rule is believed to have been 
broken. A second is not required. The Chair may rule on the question or may 
allow the board to debate the issue and decide by majority vote of those members 
present. 


(15) While commissioners may not agree with all decisions of the board, all 
commissioners shall recognize the validity of any action approved by the board. 
Commissioners shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, resolution, contract or 
other document because he or she did not vote for the action taken. 


(16) Commissioners shall keep an open mind on all issues coming before the 
board. 


(b)  Conduct of the Chair or Presiding Officer. In addition to rules of decorum 
applicable to commissioners generally, the following rules shall apply to the Chair or 
presiding officer: 


(1) The Chair or presiding officer shall recognize any commissioner who has the 
right to speak. 


(2) The Chair or presiding officer shall rule out of order any discussion on topics 
other than the motion being discussed. 


(3) The Chair or presiding officer shall only permit one commissioner at a time to 
speak. 


(4) Personal attacks, breaches of the rules of decorum and inappropriate remarks 
shall be ruled out of order by the Chair or presiding officer. 


11 
 







(5) The Chair or presiding officer shall not confront other board members, 
department heads, employees or other officials in an accusatory manner. 


(6) While the Chair or presiding officer may not agree with all decisions of the 
board, he or she shall recognize the validity of any action approved by a the 
board. 


(7)  The Chair or presiding officer shall not refuse to sign any ordinance, 
resolution, contract or other document because he or she did not vote for the 
action taken. 


(8) The Chair or presiding officer shall keep an open mind on all issues coming 
before the board. 


(c)  Conduct of Members of the Public in Meetings Generally. 


(1) All cell phones and other communication devices shall be turned off or in 
silent mode; provided, however, that a cell phone or device may be used to make 
a video or audio recording of the meeting. 


(2) All meeting attendees must be silent during the meeting while business is 
conducted. 


(3) Anyone wishing to speak must first be recognized by the Chair. 


(4) All comments must be directed to the Chair and not to individual 
commissioners, staff or others. 


(5) All meeting attendees must conduct themselves in a respectful manner. 


(6) Personal attacks and derogatory or inappropriate remarks are not permitted. 


(7) There shall be no use of profanity during the meeting. 


Section 2-52. Voting.  


Passage of a motion shall require the affirmative vote of a three commissioners 
and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present.   


Section 2-53. Abstentions.  


A commissioner shall vote on all motions unless he or she has a conflict of 
interest preventing him or her from making a decision in a fair and legal manner. If a 
conflict of interest does exist, the commissioner shall explain for the record his or her 
decision to abstain on any vote.  


Section 2-54. Public Participation.  


Public participation in meetings of the board of commissioners shall be permitted 
in accordance with the provisions of this section. 


 


12 
 







(a)  Public Hearings. Advertised hearings on zoning matters, including 
zoning map and ordinance text amendments shall be governed in accordance 
with the zoning policies and procedures adopted by the board of commissioners. 


(b)  Public Comment.  All members of the public wishing to address the 
board shall submit their name and the topic of their comments to the county clerk 
at least fifteen minutes before the beginning of the meeting. Individuals may be 
allotted five minutes to make their comments and those comments shall be 
limited to their chosen topic. These limits may be waived by a majority vote of 
the board members present. However, if an individual wishes to oppose a 
rezoning action and has contributed more than $250 to the campaign of a 
commissioner, the individual shall also file a campaign disclosure form as 
required by O.C.G.A. § 36-67A-3 at least five calendar days prior to the first 
hearing by the board of commissioners. 


(b)  Decorum.  Members of the public are expected to comply with the rules 
of decorum established in this ordinance. Individuals violating any rules of the 
board may be ruled out of order by the Chair or on a point of order made by a 
commissioner other than the Chair. Any point of order raised by a commissioner 
other than the Chair shall be ruled on by a majority vote of the board. An 
individual violating the rules of decorum may be removed from the meeting at 
the direction of the Chair. 


Section 2-55. Meeting Summary.  


The county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the subjects acted upon in a 
meeting and the names of the commissioners present at a meeting within two business 
days following the meeting. The meeting summary shall be made available to the public 
for inspection. 


Section 2-56. Minutes.  


(a)   The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board meeting. 
The minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the meeting, a 
description of each motion or other proposal made at the meeting, the name of the 
commissioner who proposed each motion, the name of the commissioner who seconded 
each motion, and a record of all votes. In the case of a roll call vote, the name of each 
commissioner voting for or against a proposal shall be recorded. It shall be presumed that 
a commissioner has voted in the affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise. More 
detailed information may be included in the minutes at the request of the board. 


(b)   The board shall approve the minutes before they may be considered as an official 
record of the board. The minutes shall be open for public inspection once approved as 
official by the board but in no case later than immediately following the next regular 
meeting of the board. A copy of the minutes from the previous meeting shall be 
distributed to the commissioners at least three business days before the following 
meeting. The minutes of the previous meeting shall be corrected, if necessary, and 
approved by the board at the beginning of each meeting. A vote of three commissioners is 
required for approval. Conflicts regarding the content of the minutes shall be decided by 
a vote of three commissioners.  Upon being approved, the minutes shall be signed by the 
Chair and attested to by the clerk of the board of commissioners. 


13 
 







14 
 


Sec. 2-57. Maintenance of Minutes and Other Documents.  


Minutes shall be maintained in the offices of the county clerk. Copies of 
contracts, maps or similar documents related to actions by the commissioners during a 
meeting may be included in or attached to the minutes or incorporated by reference to an 
alternative location.   


Sec. 2-58. Committees.  


The Chair, with the concurrence of the board, may create committees of members 
of the board to study any issue before the board.  Any such committees may make 
recommendations to the board of commissioners but no committee shall be empowered to 
make any final decision on any matter before it for consideration. In addition to board 
members, committees may include other county officials, staff or citizens at large. 
Whenever a committee is created, its duties, any limitation on the scope of its duties, and 
the times, places, and periods of time for which the committee may operate shall be 
determined by the Chair with the concurrence of the board.  


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 
Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 
the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby 
further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any 
other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that 
such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 
render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, 
constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 
herein. 
 
It is so ordained this ____ day of ___________, 2011, by the 
 
        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 







PUBLIC COMMENT HISTORY


DATE BOARD MEMBERS MOTIONS OR ACTIONS LOCATION ON AGENDA
FREQUENCY 
PER MONTH


SPEAKERS ALLOTED 
TIME LIMITATIONS ON SPEAKER NOTES


1974-1988 Various


May 3, 1989
Chairman George Patton; Bill 
Bonner; Grace Caldwell; Dan 
Lakly; Rick Price


Not Available Bottom of the Agenda Fluctuates Unknown Unknown N/A


January 11, 1990
Chairman George Patton; Vice-
Chairman Bill Bonner; Grace 
Caldwell; Dan Lakly; Rick Price


Not Available Removed None None None
January 11, 1990 is the last time Public 
Comments appears on the agenda until 


January 10, 1991.


January 10 1991


Chairman George Patton; Vice-
Chairman Dan Lakly; Bill Not Available Toward Bottom of Agenda Fluctuates Unknown Unknown N/A


NO PUBLIC COMMENT WAS AVAILABLE TO THE CITIZENS


January 10, 1991 Bonner; Rick Price; Steve 
Wallace


Not Available Toward Bottom of Agenda Fluctuates Unknown Unknown N/A


February 15, 1991


Chairman George Patton; Vice-
Chairman Dan Lakly; Bill 
Bonner; Rick Price; Steve 
Wallace


Commissioners Retreat established that speakers could only speak for 
two minutes, that the total time alloted to public speaking per meeting 


was fifteen minutes, and that only items on the  agenda could be spoken 
about.


Toward Bottom of Agenda Fluctuates Two minutes Limited to Agenda Items N/A


February 15, 1992


Chairman George Patton; Vice-
Chairman Dan Lakly; Bill 
Bonner; Rick Price; Steve 
Wallace


Commissioners Retreat-  The Board considered the value of Public 
Comment.  The result was that speakers were permitted three minutes 


to speak, only four public speakers were permitted per meeting, and only 
15 minutes were alloted for the entire Public Comment section of the 


Agenda.


Toward Bottom of Agenda
Approximately the 
last meeting of  the 


month.
Three Minutes


Limited to Agenda Items or to issues 
where the speaker did not receive 


satisfactory support with a 
Department Head


N/A


February 27, 1997


Chairman Robert Sprayberry; 
Vice-Chairman Scott Burrell; 
Harold Bost; Herb Frady; Glen 
Gosa


Not Available Removed None None None
February 27, 1997 is the last time Public 
Comments appears on the agenda until 


August 27, 1998.


August 27, 1998


Chairman Robert Sprayberry; 
Vice-Chairman Scott Burrell; 
Harold Bost; Herb Frady; Glen 
Gosa


Not Available After Public Hearings
Last BOC Meeting 


Agenda of the 
month


Five Minutes (Based on 
Linda Well's Statement - 


June 13, 2002)
Unknown N/A


March 3, 1999
Chairman Harold Bost; Vice-
Chairman Greg Dunn; Herb 
Frady; Glen Gosa; Lina Wells


February 1999 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes.  Beginning of the Agenda Every BOC 
Meeting Agenda


Three Minutes on 
Unlimited Issues. Unknown N/A


H:\Department of the Commissioners\UPDATED- PUBLIC COMMENTS HISTORY.xlsx 6/30/2011







PUBLIC COMMENT HISTORY


DATE BOARD MEMBERS MOTIONS OR ACTIONS LOCATION ON AGENDA
FREQUENCY 
PER MONTH


SPEAKERS ALLOTED 
TIME LIMITATIONS ON SPEAKER NOTES


April 22, 1999
Chairman Harold Bost; Vice-
Chairman Greg Dunn; Herb 
Frady; Glen Gosa; Linda Wells


Harold Bost  Imposes Limitations on the Speakers at the April 22, 1999 
BOC meeting..  At the 2000 Board of Commissioners Retreat, Public 


Comment was moved toward the bottom of the agenda just prior to staff 
reports.  The purpose was to accommodate those who have scheduled 


specific items for discussion by the Board. This was approved by a 
motion by Commissioner Frady, seconded by Commissioner Wells, and 


unimously approved by the Board.


Fluctuates; eventually 
remains at bottom of the 


agenda by 2000.


Every BOC 
Meeting Agenda Three Minutes


Speakers can speak on topics of 
interest, so long as comments are 


not made about items on the 
present agenda


Limitations on the Speakers and topics were 
announced to the Board by Commission 


Chairman Harold Bost.


June 13, 2002


Chairman Greg Dunn; Vice-
Chairman Linda Wells; Herb 
Frady; Peter Pfeifer, A.G. 
VanLandingham


Commissioner Herb Frady moved to give the public five minutes to 
speak instead of three minutes.  Vice-Chairman Linda Wells seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner VanLandingham 
absent from the vote.


Bottom of the Agenda Every BOC 
Meeting Agenda Five Minutes


Speakers can speak on topics of 
interest, so long as comments are 


not made about items on the 
present agenda


N/A


January 11, 2007 - 
Present


Chairman Jack Smith; Vice-
Chairman Herb Frady, Robert 
Horgan, Eric Maxwell, Peter 
Pfeifer


Vice-Chairman Herb Frady moved to move the Public Comments 
section of the agenda towards the top of the agenda, just under Public 
Hearings, and to allow members of the public to speak on any topic they 
chose- including items on the current agenda.  Commissioner Eric 
Maxwell seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.


Top of the Agenda, just 
under Public Hearings


Every BOC 
Meeting Five Minutes


Speakers can speak on topics of 
interest, including items listed on the 


current agenda.
N/A


H:\Department of the Commissioners\UPDATED- PUBLIC COMMENTS HISTORY.xlsx 6/30/2011





		Commissioners- Meetings Ordinanance File.pdf

		Commissioners- Meetings Ordinance Backup

		Commissioners- Meetings Ordinance Backup1.pdf

		Commissioners- Meetings Ordinance Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of a request from Community Development Director Pete Frisina to send a letter to the Georgia Department of Community 


Affairs (DCA) requesting deferral of deadlines for updates of the County's Comprehensive Plan and Solid Waste Management Plan, as 


allowed by DCA.


At the March 2, 2011, Board of Commissioners (BOC) Workshop, Jack Krakeel and Pete Frisina briefed the BOC on the deadline of June 


30, 2012, for a major update of the local Comprehensive Plan and on Senate Bill 86 which would eliminate or modify the requirement for 


local plans.  Similar legislation was introduced for Solid Waste Management Plans.  The legislature passed both bills and transmitted to 


Governor Deal for signature.  The Solid Waste Bill was signed.  However, Senate Bill 86 was vetoed. 


 


Governor Deal has instructed DCA to draft new planning rules and guidance to address concerns of those who had supported Senate Bill 


86.  County staff have reviewed the current plans and found that they are adequate for meeting local needs, so major updates are not 


needed at this time.


Support for transmittal of the attached letter requesting approval of the deferral option for Fayette County.


Not applicable


Yes Wednesday, March 2, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, July 6, 2011

































		Planning and Zoning- Comp and...Plans Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Comp and Solid Waste Plans Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Stormwater Vanessa Birrell / Brian Keller


Consideration of staff's recommendation related to funding the costs of stormwater management.


Staff has been coming before the Board of Commissioners since 2003 to work through the state and federal mandates that require local 


cities and counties to address stormwater (run-off) issues in Georgia. An independent feasibility study was conducted to determine levels 


of need and to address funding mechanisms that would raise funds to pay for stormwater facility maintenance. Historically, these costs 


have been paid for by county-wide property taxes, from which several types of properties are exempt. Discussions have taken place with 


our municipalities and Fayetteville and Peachtree City have subsequently established stormwater utilities for their cities. 


 


The time has come for the Board of Commissioners to give direction to staff on how stormwater management will be funded in the future, 


either by continuing to pay costs with property taxes or to establish a stormwater utility which will be funded by user-fees imposed on 


property owners in unincorporated Fayette County. 


 


Staff is recommending that a fee-based utility be established. The final decision lies with the Board of Commissioners. If a utility is to be 


established, an ordinance will need to be prepared and placed on an agenda for action at a future Board meeting. 


 


Discussion and direction on how the Board wishes to fund stormwater maintenance in the future. 


Not Applicable.


Yes Many times


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, July 6, 2011







 


 
 


TO:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners  
 
FROM: Stormwater Management Department 
   
DATE: June 22, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Stormwater Management Funding Recommendation 
 
The level of stormwater management the county currently provides can no longer support the 
mounting maintenance and replacement needs of infrastructure and increasing state and federal 
unfunded regulatory mandates.  Staff estimates that 7% of pipe are in poor condition and require 
either maintenance or replacement and 26% of pipes are in unknown condition and in need of 
maintenance prior to conducting any inspection.  Most pipes installed in Fayette County are 
corrugated metal pipe with an average life span of 25 years.  Currently 40% of county 
subdivisions are over 25 years old.  Currently, 51 stormwater improvement projects have been 
identified stormwater staff based on our currently complaint-only level-of-service  
(Attachment A.) 
 
Stormwater staff is recommending a dedicated stormwater enterprise fund be established sourced 
from user-fees based on a fair and equitable rate methodology that associates demand placed on 
the system directly proportional to the user.  These recommendations reflect the concerns 
expressed above and those by the Stormwater Advisory Committee and take into account the 
department's mission of maintaining the highest degree of safety and infrastructure reliability for 
the benefit of customers while taking cost and environmental impacts into account.  A draft 
Stormwater Utility Ordinance and a rationalized rate study are attached for the Board of 
Commissioners’ consideration (Attachments B and C.) 


 
Providing dedicated stormwater funding is recognized across the United States as a basic utility 
service similar to water supply and wastewater utilities.  A dedicated enterprise fund based on a 
stormwater user fee can be the primary funding source of a stormwater management program.  A 
dedicated funding source is essential to keeping citizens and property safe from flooding, meet 
demands of deteriorating drainage infrastructure and comply with increasing unfunded 
regulatory requirements. While many other opportunities are available for secondary funding, a 
utility fee is a continual long-term funding source.  


Background - From 2003 to present, various presentations to the BOC have outlined the consistent 
increase of stormwater management responsibilities and various funding opportunities (Attachment D.)  
On October 14, 2010 the BOC was presented the Stormwater Funding Feasibility study prepared by 
Integrated Science and Engineering recommending that the county proceed with implementing a user-
fee system dedicated exclusively to stormwater management.   


On December 9, 2010 the BOC authorized Integrated Science and Engineering and the Stormwater 
Staff to collect additional data needed to identify program priorities and service charge scenarios.  At 







 


the direction of the Board a Stormwater Advisory Committee, composed of stakeholders throughout 
the county, has provided recommendations on the stormwater management program (Attachment E.) 


Because of extreme impervious area differentials existing among single-family residential parcels in 
the unincorporated county, ISE was tasked to collect data necessary to implement a detailed 
impervious area rate model needed to calculate user fees.  This detailed model was developed by 
mapping the impervious areas for every individual parcel.   


Proposed Operations Plan and Fee Structure   Impervious area is directly proportional to demand 
put on the stormwater management system and therefore is the most equitable for assigning service 
charges.  We used the impervious area data collected by ISE to calculate the proposed rate study.  The 
rate study uses a step-up approach to accommodate an increased level of service in years four and five.   


Based on the impervious rate model an enterprise fund can sustain a long-term stormwater 
management program initiated by proposed five-year operating plan (Attachment F.) This five-year 
plan will be updated on a continual basis to insure equality and sustainability for the stormwater 
management program.  Also, at the recommendation of the Stormwater Advisory Committee, every 
five years the stormwater management program will be re-evaluated to insure the program is 
adequately addressing all county stormwater needs.  


 In years one through three of this operations plan  proposed work will finish a detailed infrastructure 
inventory and inspection; future floodplain conditions modeling required by the state; initiation of a 
systematic operation and maintenance program; and payback of capital improvements and utility setup.  
In years four and five, an increase in the level-of-service through additional service programs, 
increased maintenance and capital projects are supported.  A cost-of-service graph (Attachment G) 
shows the average five-year expense percentages for the functional areas. 


Three additional staff and one reinstated positions are proposed to help meet requirements for this 
expanded program. The proposed reinstated senior environmental technician will finish the system 
inventory and initial inspections required by the North Georgia Metropolitan Watershed District.  Once 
that task is completed, this position will then perform systematic inventory and updates and described 
in the attached position description (Attachment H.)  Upon completion of the initial inventory and 
inspections a master plan will be developed.  Three new positions proposed comprise a maintenance 
crew consisting of a crew leader and two laborers. 


Utility Implementation Requirements and Associated Costs  An adopted Stormwater Utility 
Ordinance governs the basic program structure and gives authority for staff to proceed with 
establishing dedicated enterprise fund and the associated inspection, credit, exemption, extent-of-
service and level-of-service and enforcement policies for the Board’s approval.  Upon adoption of the 
Stormwater Utility Ordinance and approval of the proposed rate structure, staff can then proceed with 
development of the Rate Structure Ordinance, Credit Manual and Business Plan.  Development of the 
Business Plan, Credit Manual and Ordinances can be done in-house saving the county anywhere from 
$30,000 to $60,000. 


It is staffs recommendation to establish of the master account files within Munis Software and use the 
already established Munis billing system at the Water System for cost efficiency.  Costs to assimilate 







 


the master account billing file will range from $30,000 to $50,000, depending the ease of software 
integration and how closely the databases align.  It should be noted this task will include a billing trial 
run exercise as a QA/QC measure. 


Public Outreach Compliance Requirements  –   NPDES educational compliance requirements have 
increased every year during this permit cycle and all expectations are for a substantial increase in the 
next permit cycle.  These regulatory requirements can be also used to education the users about the 
utility.  Education material for dissemination through web and print media (water bill insert) is the 
most cost effective media output due to its interchangeability. “The general public must be educated 
and involved, as a critical element to the success of a stormwater utility” (Public Involvement and 
Education: The Critical Elements to the Success of Stormwater Utilities.)  Public Outreach 
expenditures are estimated to be approximately $10,000. 


To date the Stormwater Management Department has incurred $122,577 for the Feasibility Funding 
Study, establishment and solicitation of comments from the Stormwater Advisory Committee and 
impervious area data development.  These funds were allocated from the Future Floodplain Study CIP 
allocation of $630, 000.  In addition to the $122k stormwater funding expenditure, $19, 690 was spent 
from this fund for the Line and Camp Creek Future Floodplain studies. 


 







M
S4
 In
sp
ec
tio


ns



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A



















M
S4
 In
sp
ec
tio


n 
Re


su
lts


St
or


m
w


at
er


 P
ip


e 
D


at
a


M
ile


s
Li


ne
ar


 F
ee


t
In


sp
ec


te
d 


P
ip


es
31


.5
16


6,
32


0
%


 In
sp


ec
te


d1&
2


32
.7


%
E


st
im


at
ed


 R
oa


d 
C


ul
ve


rt 
(N


ot
 in


 s
ub


di
vi


si
on


s)
1


11
.9


63
,0


00
E


st
im


at
ed


 C
ul


ve
rts


 in
 s


ub
di


vi
si


on
s 


(a
ll)


2
84


.5
44


6,
16


0


M
ile


s 
of


 P
oo


r c
on


di
tio


n 
(w


or
st


 ra
tin


gs
 7


%
 o


f p
ip


es
)


6.
7


35
,6


29
M


ile
s 


of
 U


nk
no


w
n 


co
nd


iti
on


 (n
ee


ds
 m


ai
nt


en
an


ce
 2


6%
 o


f p
ip


es
)


25
.1


13
2,


33
8


1-
 B


as
ed


 o
n 


an
 e


st
im


at
io


n 
of


 1
,5


00
 p


ip
e 


cr
os


si
ng


s o
n 


th
e 


ap
pr


ox
 3


75
 m


ile
s o


f r
oa


ds
 o


ut
si


de
 o


f s
ub


di
vi


si
on


s @
 4


 c
ro


ss
in


gs
 a


 m
ile


.
2-


 B
as


ed
 o


n 
da


ta
 g


iv
en


 to
 th


e 
B


O
C


 o
n 


8-
14


-2
00


8


N
ot
e 
th
is
 d
oe


s 
no


t 
in
cl
ud


e 
st
ru
ct
ur
es
 (c
at
ch
 b
as
in
s,
 h
ea
dw


al
ls
, e
tc
.)







St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
s


•W
ha
t i
s 
a 
St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
 (S
IP
)


•H
ow


 m
an
y 
SI
P 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 a
re
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 id
en


tif
ie
d


•H
ow


 is
 a
 S
IP
 r
at
ed


•E
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f a


 S
IP
 p
ro
je
ct
s







St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
s


•W
ha
t i
s 
a 
St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
 (S
IP
)


•In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 im


pr
ov
em


en
t i
s 
ne


ed
ed


•P
ro
je
ct
s 
co
nn


ec
te
d 
to
 o
ur
 M


S4
 o
r 
ca
us
e 
by


 s
to
rm


w
at
er
 fr
om


 o
ur
 M


S4


•C
ur
re
nt
ly
 Id
en


tif
ie
d 
by


 b
ot
h 
in
sp
ec
tio


ns
 a
nd


 c
om


pl
ai
nt
s


•C
an
no


t b
e 
co
rr
ec
t w


ith
 th


e 
cu
rr
en


t y
ea
rs
 o
pe


ra
tio


n 
an
d 
m
ai
nt
en


an
ce
 


 
bu


dg
et
 


•A
nd


 is
 n
ot
 g
en


er
al
 m


ai
nt
en


an
ce
 (t
he


se
 a
re
 w
or
k 
or
de


r 
an
d 
66


 w
er
e


 
is
su
ed


 in
 2
01


0)







St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
s


SI
P 


#
Lo


ca
tio


n
M


on
th


 
A


dd
ed


S
IP


-0
1


13
1 


D
ee


r F
or


re
st


 T
ria


l


S
IP


-0
2


B
an


ks
 R


oa
d


S
IP


-0
3


16
5 


H
un


te
rs


 G
le


n 
(Q


ua
il 


H
ol


lo
w


)


S
IP


-0
4


13
0 


M
or


ni
ng


 D
ov


e 
D


r (
Q


ua
il 


H
ol


lo
w


)


S
IP


-0
5


14
5 


S
co


tt 
B


lv
d 


(T
im


be
rri


dg
e)


 N
ee


d 
P


ho
to


s


S
IP


-0
6


O
ld


 S
en


oi
a 


S
am


s 
M


iti
ga


tio
n 


S
ite


S
IP


-0
7


15
0 


O
ld


 M
ill


 C
ou


rt 
(C


ry
st


al
 L


ak
e 


E
st


at
es


)


S
IP


-0
8


13
5 


M
er


ry
da


le
 D


r (
H


un
tin


g 
So


ut
h)


S
IP


-0
9


Po
nd


ar
os


a


S
IP


-1
0


La
Fa


ye
tte


 E
st


at
es


S
IP


-1
1


12
1 


B
ro


om
 B


lv
d 


(H
al


l-B
ro


om
)


S
IP


-1
2


15
0 


H
al


l P
la


ce
 (H


al
l-B


ro
om


)


S
IP


-1
3


10
5 


Be
rr


y 
R


id
ge


 R
oa


d


S
IP


-1
4


38
6 


Le
es


 M
ill 


R
oa


d


S
IP


-1
5


R
ob


er
ts


 R
oa


d


S
IP


-1
6


18
5 


D
ow


ni
ng


 R
oa


d


S
IP


-1
7


10
5 


St
ab


le
 C


re
ek


 R
d


S
IP


-1
8


S
co


tt 
B


lv
d 


of
f E


lli
so


n


S
IP


-1
9


C
ra


ba
pp


le
 U


nd
er


si
ze


d 
Pi


pe


S
IP


-2
0


Sa
nd


y 
C


re
ek


 a
nd


 F
la


t C
re


ek
 T


ra
il


S
IP


-2
1


B
ev


er
ly


 M
an


or
 (M


ul
tip


le
 P


ro
je


ct
s)


O
ct


ob
er


S
IP


-2
2


M
cC


ur
ry


 P
ar


k 
R


et
ro


fit
O


ct
ob


er


S
IP


-2
3


Al
l o


f B
et


ha
 W


oo
ds


N
ov


em
be


r


S
IP


-2
4


20
4 


N
ew


 H
op


e 
C


irc
le


N
ov


em
be


r


S
IP


-2
5


Pi
ne


vi
ew


 a
nd


 T
im


be
rla


nd
 T


ra
il


N
ov


em
be


r


S
IP


-2
6


P
av


e 
in


ve
rts


D
ec


em
be


r


SI
P 


#
Lo


ca
tio


n
M


on
th


 A
dd


ed
S


IP
-2


7
R


e-
gr


ou
t p


ip
es


 in
 J


B
s


D
ec


em
be


r


S
IP


-2
8


36
2 


Q
ua


rte
rs


 R
oa


d
Ja


nu
ar


y


S
IP


-2
9


33
0 


O
ak


 S
t


Ja
nu


ar
y


S
IP


-3
0


O
ld


 M
ill 


C
ou


rt
Ja


nu
ar


y


S
IP


-3
1


O
LD


 H
W


Y
 9


2
Ja


nu
ar


y


S
IP


-3
2


Q
ua


il 
H


ol
lo


w
 1


65
 H


un
te


rs
 G


le
n


Ja
nu


ar
y


S
IP


-3
3


14
2 


C
ar


ro
llw


oo
d 


D
r


Fe
b-


10


S
IP


-3
4


Th
e 


O
ak


s 
II,


 L
ot


 5
1


Fe
b-


10


S
IP


-3
5


A
m


en
iti


es
 A


re
a 


M
illp


on
d 


M
an


or
Fe


b-
10


S
IP


-3
6


12
5 


Be
rk


le
y 


P
la


ce
Fe


b-
10


S
IP


-3
7


G
ris


tm
ill 


R
oa


d 
C


ul
ve


rt/
H


ea
dw


al
l 0


74
-1


0
M


ar
ch


S
IP


-3
8


M
cE


lro
y 


&
 B


an
ks


 R
d.


M
ar


ch


S
IP


-3
9


Br
an


do
n 


M
ill 


C
irc


le
 (C


at
ch


 B
as


in
 re


pi
ar


s)
M


ar
ch


S
IP


-4
0


B
rit


ta
ny


 W
ay


M
ar


ch


S
IP


-4
1


M
or


ni
ng


 C
re


ek
 L


an
e


M
ar


ch


S
IP


-4
2


15
5 


R
eb


ec
ca


 C
t


M
ar


ch


S
IP


-4
3


56
7 


C
ov


er
ed


 B
rid


ge
 T


ra
il


A
pr


il


S
IP


-4
4


13
0 


N
or


th
 M


or
ni


ng
 D


ov
e 


D
r.


A
pr


il


S
IP


-4
5


11
0 


H
an


ds
ha


ke
r C


t.
M


ay


S
IP


-4
6


Ki
rk


le
y 


R
oa


d 
C


ul
ve


rts
Au


g-
10


S
IP


-4
7


Tr
ic


ku
m


 C
re


ek
 R


oa
d 


C
ul


ve
rts


Au
g-


10


S
IP


-4
8


10
5 


N
or


th
w


in
d 


Tr
ai


l
Au


g-
10


S
IP


-4
9


K
ai


r G
le


n 
S


ub
di


vi
si


on
Au


g-
10


S
IP


-5
0


26
5 


Lo
ne


 O
ak


 D
riv


e
Au


g-
10


S
IP


-5
1


19
0 


S
ta


rrs
 M


ill 
R


id
ge


S
IP


-5
2


33
8 


G
ro


om
s 


R
oa


d
Au


g-
10











St
or
m
w
at
er
 Im


pr
ov
em


en
t P


ro
je
ct
s


•H
ow


 is
 a
 S
IP
 r
at
ed







SI
P‐
08


 1
35


 M
er
ry
da
le
 D
ri
ve


SI
P 


N
o. Pr


oj
ec


t N
am


e:
Pr


oj
ec


t L
oc


at
io


n
M


on
th


/Y
ea


r A
dd


ed
:


C
on


di
tio


n 
of


 S
ys


te
m


:
Pu


bl
ic 


Pr
op


er
ty


 R
at


ing
:


Pr
iva


te
 P


ro
pe


rty
 


Ra
tin


g:
Pu


bl
ic 


Sa
fe


ty
 R


at
ing


:


Re
pl


ac
e 


ex
ist


ing
 sy


ste
m


 w
ith


 e
qu


iva
len


t s
ize


d 
sy


ste
m


Ex
is


tin
g 


Sy
st


em
Pr


op
os


ed
 S


ys
te


m


M
er


ry
da


le 
D


riv
e 


cr
os


se
s o


ve
r G


ay
 C


re
ek


.T
he


 c
ro


ss
ing


 
w


as
 m


ad
e 


us
ing


 a
 7


2"
 c


oa
te


d 
C


M
P.


Th
e 


pi
pe


 h
as


 
co


llo
ps


ed
 to


 a
 p


oi
nt


 w
he


re
 d


am
ag


e 
to


 th
e 


ro
ad


w
ay


 is
 


oc
cu


rin
g.


 T
he


re
 is


 in
ve


rt 
da


na
ge


 d
ue


 to
 ru


st,
C


or
ro


sio
n 


&
 


sc
ou


r.


8 N
/A


3.
25 3


13
5 


M
er


ry
da


le 
D


riv
e


SI
P 


Ra
nk


in
g


Ti
er


 3


In
se


rt 
Pi


ct
ur


e 
H


er
e


50


F
A


Y
E


TT
E


 C
O


U
N


TY
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 M


A
N


A
G


EM
EN


T 
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 IM


PR
O


V
EM


EN
T 


PR
O


JE
C


T


13
5 


M
er


ry
da


le 
D


r


D
es


cr
ip


tio
n:


P
rin


t







SI
P‐
35


 A
m
en


iti
es
 A
re
a 
M
ill
po


nd
 M


an
or


SI
P 


N
o. Pr


oj
ec


t N
am


e:
Pr


oj
ec


t L
oc


at
io


n
M


on
th


/Y
ea


r A
dd


ed
:


C
on


di
tio


n 
of


 S
ys


te
m


:
Pu


bl
ic 


Pr
op


er
ty


 R
at


ing
:


Pr
iva


te
 P


ro
pe


rty
 


Ra
tin


g:
Pu


bl
ic 


Sa
fe


ty
 R


at
ing


:


Re
m


ov
e 


las
t p


ar
t o


f p
ip


e 
an


d 
re


se
t h


ea
dw


all
 o


ut
 o


f t
he


 
w


ay
 o


f t
he


 c
ur


re
nt


 fl
ow


 a
nd


 st
ab


liz
e 


en
tir


e 
ar


ea
.


SI
P 


Ra
nk


in
g


Ti
er


 2


In
se


rt 
Pi


ct
ur


e 
H


er
e


34


F
A


Y
E


TT
E


 C
O


U
N


TY
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 M


A
N


A
G


EM
EN


T 
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 IM


PR
O


V
EM


EN
T 


PR
O


JE
C


T


A
m


en
itie


s A
re


a 
M


illp
on


d 
M


an
or


D
es


cr
ip


tio
n:


Ex
is


tin
g 


Sy
st


em
Pr


op
os


ed
 S


ys
te


m


Th
e 


pi
pe


 u
nd


er
 G


ris
tm


ill 
D


riv
e 


is 
po


int
ed


 to
w


ar
d 


th
e 


pi
pe


 a
t t


he
 a


m
ini


et
y 


ar
ea


s a
nd


 h
as


 c
au


se
d 


th
e 


pi
pe


 to
 b


e 
co


m
pl


et
ely


 e
xp


os
ed


. 


5


Fe
br


ua
ry


-1
0


3.
25 0


A
m


en
itie


s A
re


a 
M


illp
on


d 
M


an
or


P
rin


t







SI
P‐
19


  C
ra


ba
pp


le
 U


nd
er


si
ze


d 
P


ip
e


SI
P 


N
o. Pr


oj
ec


t N
am


e:
Pr


oj
ec


t L
oc


at
io


n
M


on
th


/Y
ea


r A
dd


ed
:


C
on


di
tio


n 
of


 S
ys


te
m


:
Pu


bl
ic 


Pr
op


er
ty


 R
at


ing
:


Pr
iva


te
 P


ro
pe


rty
 


Ra
tin


g:
Pu


bl
ic 


Sa
fe


ty
 R


at
ing


:


SI
P 


Ra
nk


in
g


Ti
er


 1


In
se


rt 
Pi


ct
ur


e 
H


er
e


12


F
A


Y
E


TT
E


 C
O


U
N


TY
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 M


A
N


A
G


EM
EN


T 
ST


O
R


M
W


A
TE


R
 IM


PR
O


V
EM


EN
T 


PR
O


JE
C


T


C
ra


ba
pp


le 
Ln


D
es


cr
ip


tio
n:


C
om


pl
et


e 
a 


hy
dr


ol
og


y 
stu


dy
 a


nd
 d


es
ign


 a
 sy


ste
m


 to
 


th
e 


ap
pr


op
ira


te
 si


ze
. 


Ex
is


tin
g 


Sy
st


em
Pr


op
os


ed
 S


ys
te


m


A
pp


ea
rs


 th
at


 d
ur


nin
g 


he
av


y 
ra


in 
ev


en
ts 


St
or


m
w


at
er


 o
ve


r 
to


ps
 C


ra
ba


pp
le 


La
ne


 m
ak


ing
 it


 a
pp


ea
r t


ha
t t


he
 p


ip
e 


is 
un


de
rs


ize
d.


 


19 N
/A


1.
87


5
2


C
ra


ba
pp


le 
La


ne


P
rin


t







Th
e 
U
nk
no


w
ns



http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=p_uqPR4Ir5o





   


Page 1 of 12 


AN ORDINANCE 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE 
COUNTY BY ADOPTING A NEW ARTICLE ?, STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT,TO CHAPTER 19,UTILITIES, RELATING TO STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT IN UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY; STATING 
FINDINGS REGARDING STORMWATER MANAGEMENT NEEDS IN 
UNINCORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY; ESTABLISHING A 
STORMWATER UTILITY AS A DEDICATED ENTERPRISE ACCOUNTING 
UNIT OF THE DIVISION OF UTILITY SERVICES, STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT; STATING THE SERVICE AREA, 
PURPOSES, AND POWERS OF THE UTILITY; PROVIDING 
DEFINITIONS; STATING GENERAL SERVICE CHARGE RATE POLICIES; 
DECLARING THAT INDIVIDUAL SECTIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 
BE SEVERABLE ONE FROM ANOTHER; ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, Fayette County is responsible for the protection and preservation of the 
public health, safety, and welfare of the community; 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is authorized by Article IX, 
Section II, Paragraph 111(a) (6) of the Georgia Constitution to provide stormwater 
management throughout the unincorporated area of Fayette County; 
WHEREAS, the federal Clean Water Act as amended by the Water Quality Act of 1987 
(33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) and rules promulgated by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency pursuant to the Act place increased emphasis on the role of local 
governments in developing, implementing, conducting and funding stormwater 
management programs which address water quality impacts of storm water runoff; 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has completed a professional engineering and financial 
analysis by Integrated Science and Engineering of its stormwater management problems, 
needs, goals, program priorities and funding opportunities, which has been delivered to 
the county and has been examined, reviewed and discussed by the Board of 
Commissioners; 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds and concludes from the professional 
engineering and financial analysis that substantial stormwater management program 
operational and capital investment needs exist; 
WHEREAS, the professional engineering and financial analysis indicates that adequate 
and stable funding will be essential if the county is to meet its future stormwater 
management program operational and capital investment needs; and 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B







   


Page 2 of 12 


WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Commissioners to proceed with the 
development, implementation, and operation of a utility for stormwater management 
accounted for in the county budget as a separate enterprise fund dedicated solely to 
stormwater management and to institute funding methods associated therewith; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, AND IT IS ESTABLISHED AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 19 The Code of Ordinances of Fayette County is hereby amended by adopting 
a new Article ? , STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, to Chapter 19, UTILITTES, to read as 
follows:   


  


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
- Sections: 
010 - Findings. 
020 - Establishment of a Utility and Enterprise Fund. 
030 - Definitions. 
040 - Scope of Responsibility for unincorporated Fayette County Stormwater Management Utility. 
050 - Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods. 
060 - General Funding Policy. 
070 - Effective Date of Stormwater Charges. 
080 - Stormwater Management Utility Service Charges. 
090 - Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges. 
100 - Stormwater Service Charge Billing, Delinquencies, Collections. 
110 - Appeals. 


 


.010 - Findings. 


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia makes the following findings:  


A.  The professional engineering and financing analyses, prepared by Integrated Science and 
Engineering, Inc., properly assesses and defines the stormwater management problems, needs, 
goals, program priorities and funding opportunities of unincorporated Fayette County.   


B. Given the problems, needs, goals, program priorities, and funding opportunities identified in 
the professional engineering and financing analyses, it is appropriate to authorize the formation of 
an organizational and accounting entity dedicated specifically to the management, maintenance, 
protection, control, regulation, use, and enhancement of stormwater systems in unincorporated 
Fayette in concert with other water resource management programs.  


C. Stormwater management is applicable and needed throughout the unincorporated boundaries 
of Fayette County. While specific service and facility demands may differ from area to area at any 







   


Page 3 of 12 


given point in time, a stormwater management service area encompassing all lands and water 
bodies within the unincorporated boundaries of Fayette County is consistent with the present and 
future needs of the community.  


D. The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County include, but are not limited to, 
protecting the public health, safety, and welfare. Provision of stormwater management programs 
and facilities renders and/or results in both service and benefit to all properties, property owners, 
citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety of ways as identified in the professional 
engineering and financial analyses. The service and benefit rendered or resulting from provision of 
stormwater management systems and facilities may differ depending on many factors and 
considerations, including but not limited to location, demands and impacts imposed on the 
stormwater systems and programs, and risk exposure.  


E. Fayette County presently owns and operates stormwater management systems and facilities 
which have been developed over many years. The future usefulness of the existing stormwater 
systems owned and operated by the county, and of additions and improvements thereto, rests on the 
ability of the county to effectively manage, protect, control, regulate, use, and enhance stormwater 
systems and facilities in Fayette County in concert with the management of other water resources 
in the county. In order to do so, the county must have adequate and stable funding for its 
stormwater management program operating and capital investment needs.  


F. The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that a Stormwater Management 
Utility provides the most practical and appropriate means of properly delivering and funding 
stormwater management services in unincorporated Fayette County.  


G. An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities can be 
provided by adopting a schedule of service charges upon properties that is related to the burden of 
stormwater quality control service requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the 
county. Such schedule of service charges can be complemented by other funding methods which 
address specific needs, including but not limited to, allocations of special purpose local options 
sales taxes to stormwater drainage improvement projects. A service charge credit is an appropriate 
means of adjusting service charges in recognition that private stormwater systems and/or actions 
can effectively reduce or eliminate the burden of stormwater quantity and quality control service 
requirements and costs that a property or properties pose for the county. Impervious area is the 
most important factor influencing stormwater service requirements and costs posed by properties 
throughout the county, and therefore is an appropriate parameter for calculating stormwater service 
charges and associated credits. In addition, the value to the stormwater utility of certain actions and 
practices performed by property owners and other stormwater utility customers may be recognized 
by credits based on other factors, including but not limited to, the avoided cost of public 
information and education realized by the utility when public information and education about 
stormwater management is provided by the public school system.  


.020 - Establishment of a Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


A.  There is hereby established a Stormwater Management Utility within the Fayette County Utility 
Services which shall be responsible for stormwater management throughout the unincorporated county 
limits, and shall provide for the management, protection, control, regulation, use, and enhancement of 







   


Page 4 of 12 


stormwater systems and facilities. Such utility shall be under the direction of a Stormwater Management 
Director.  


B. The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish a stormwater 
enterprise fund in the county budget and accounting system, separate and apart from its General Fund, 
for the purpose of dedicating and protecting all funding applicable to the purposes and responsibilities of 
the utility, including but not limited to rentals, rates, charges, fees, and licenses as may be established by 
the Board of Commissioners. All revenues and receipts of the stormwater utility shall be deposited 
promptly upon receipt into the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the 
purposes dedicated, and expended exclusively for purposes of the stormwater utility, including capital 
project construction. No other funds of the county shall be deposited in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund 
or commingled with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that other revenues, receipts, and resources 
not accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, including, but not limited to, grants, transfers of 
county funds, loans, and bond proceeds may be combined with and applied to stormwater management 
stormwater management as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners, upon recommendation 
of the County Administrator.  


C. The Board of Commissioners hereby transfers to the Stormwater Utility Director operational 
control over the existing stormwater management systems and facilities owned and heretofore operated 
by the County and other related assets, including but not limited to properties upon which such facilities 
are located, easements, rights-of-entry and access, and certain equipment.  


.030 - Definitions. 


Except as specifically defined in this chapter, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 
definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a stormwater service charge to an individual property 
based on the provision and continuing presence of an effectively maintained and operational on-site 
stormwater system or facility or the provision of a service or activity by property owner, which system, 
facility, service, or activity reduces the stormwater utility's cost of providing stormwater services and 
facilities. The basis of such credits if granted will be defined by a specific written agreement at the 
determination of the County Administrator as approved by action of the Board of Commissioners.  


County.  The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes of this 
ordinance may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County. 


Customers.  All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or benefiting from the utility's 
acquisition, management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater 
management systems and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, 
and activities related thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or 
benefited as a result of the stormwater management program.  


Detached Dwelling Unit. Developed land containing one structure which is not attached to another 
dwelling and which contains one or more bedrooms, with a bathroom and kitchen facilities, designed for 
occupancy by one family. Detached dwelling units may include houses, manufactured homes, and 
mobile homes located on one or more individual lots or parcels of land. Developed land may be 


Deleted:  of the Stormwater 
Management Utility







   


Page 5 of 12 


classified as a detached dwelling unit despite the presence of incidental structures associated with 
residential uses such as garages, carports, or small storage buildings, or the presence of a commercial 
use within the dwelling unit so long as such use does not result in additional impervious areas such as 
parking spaces, playgrounds, or structures or additions to the building which are used as offices, storage 
facilities, meeting rooms, classrooms, houses of worship, or similar non-residential uses. Detached 
dwelling unit shall not include developed land containing: structures used primarily for non-residential 
purposes, manufactured homes and mobile homes located within manufactured home or mobile home 
parks where the land is owned by others than the owners of the manufactured homes or mobile homes, 
or multiple dwelling unit residential properties.  


Developed Land. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, compaction, 
construction of structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that hydrologic response of the 
property is changed from that which would occur in the natural undeveloped condition.  


Impervious A topographic allowing the passage of water through the surface on the ground or ground 
covering or a substantial reduction in the capacity for water to pass through the surface of the ground or 
ground covering as it would under natural conditions.  
 
Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.   Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of 
stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes 
of the stormwater utility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved 
areas; improved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 
coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or that 
change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to development. 


Hydrologic Response of a property is the manner and means whereby stormwater collects, remains, 
infiltrates, and is conveyed from a property. It is dependent on several factors including, but not limited 
to, the presence of impervious area; the size, shape, topographic, vegetative, and geologic conditions of 
a property; antecedent moisture conditions; and groundwater conditions on a property.  


Service Charges.  A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, which charge shall be 
reflective of the service provided by Fayette County Stormwater Utility. Service charges are based on 
measurable parameters which influence the stormwater utility's cost of providing services and facilities, 
with the most important factor being the amount of impervious area on each parcel of land. The use of 
impervious area as a service charge rate parameter shall not preclude the use of other parameters, or the 
grouping of properties having similar characteristics through the use of ranges or rounding up or down 
to a consistent numerical interval, or the use of flat-rate charges for one or more classes of similarly-
situated properties whose impact on the stormwater utility's cost of providing stormwater management 
services and facilities is relatively consistent. Stormwater service charges may also include special 
charges to the owners of particular properties for services or facilities uniquely related to stormwater 
management of that property, including but not limited to charges for development plan review, 
inspection of development projects and on-site stormwater control systems, and enhanced level of 
stormwater services above those normally provided by the county.  


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 
inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systems. 


Deleted: Other Developed Land shall 
mean, but shall not be limited to, multiple 
dwelling unit residential properties, 
manufactured home and mobile home 
parks, commercial and office buildings, 
public buildings and structures, industrial 
and manufacturing buildings, storage 
buildings and storage areas covered with 
impervious surfaces, parking lots, parks, 
recreation properties, public and private 
schools and universities, research 
stations, hospitals and convalescent 
centers, airports, agricultural uses 
covered by impervious surfaces, water 
reservoirs, and water and wastewater 
treatment plants. ¶







   


Page 6 of 12 


Stormwater Management. The planning, design, construction, regulation, improvement, repair, 
maintenance, and operation of facilities and programs relating to water, flood plains, flood control, 
grading erosion, tree conservation, and sediment control. 


Stormwater Management Services.   All services provided by the county that relate to the: 
1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette County 


Stormwater Management System; 
2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems; 
3. Regulation of the use of stormwater management services and systems; and, 
4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and permit 


requirements. 
Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the quantity 
thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, 
facilities, operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) and 
environmental quality (pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, 
ponds, and reservoirs through improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, 
instrumentalities and properties used or useful in the collection, retention, detention, and treatment of 
stormwater or surface water drainage.  


Undeveloped Land.   Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified to such minimal 
degree as to have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered natural state shall be deemed 
undeveloped. Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, or compacted gravel surfaces or 
structures which create an impervious surface that would prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause 
stormwater to collect, concentrate, or flow in a manner materially different than that which would occur 
if the land was in an unaltered natural state.  


.040 - Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Management Utility. 


A.  The Stormwater Management Utility shall be responsible for stormwater management throughout 
the unincorporated limits of Fayette County Government. The utility shall provide for the conservation, 
management, protection, control, use, and enhancement of stormwater through planning, acquisition, 
construction, installation, management, operation, maintenance, regulation, extension, and improvement 
of the public stormwater systems to collect, control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and treat 
stormwater and through regulation of stormwater management systems on private property. It shall be 
the long-term objective of the county to provide a comparable and consistent level of stormwater service 
to similarly situated properties throughout the service area.  


B. The Fayette County Stormwater Management System consists of all rivers, streams, creeks, 
branches, lakes, reservoirs, ponds, drainage ways, channels, ditches, swales, storm sewers, culverts, 
inlets, catch basins, pipes, head walls and other structures, natural or man-made, within the political 
boundaries of unincorporated Fayette County that control and/or convey stormwater through which the 
county intentionally diverts surface waters from its public streets and properties. The county owns or has 
legal access for purposes of operation, maintenance and improvements to those segments of this system 
that:  


Deleted: entire set of 







   


Page 7 of 12 


(1) Are located within public streets, rights-of-way, and easements; 


(2) Are subject to easements, rights-of-entry, rights-of-access, rights-of-use, or other permanent 
provisions for adequate access for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater 
drainage systems; or  


(3) Are located on public lands to which the county has adequate access for operation, 
maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater drainage systems and facilities.  


C. Operation and maintenance of stormwater management systems that are located on private property 
or public property not owned by Fayette County and for which there has been no public dedication of 
such systems and/or facilities for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of the systems and 
facilities shall be and remain the legal responsibility of the property owner, or its occupant, except as 
that responsibility may be otherwise affected by the laws of the State of Georgia and/or the United 
States of America.  


D. It is the intent of this Ordinance to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of all 
properties and persons in general, but not to create any special duty or relationship with any individual 
person or to any specified property within or without the boundaries of Fayette County. Fayette County 
expressly reserves the right to assert all available immunities and defenses in any action seeking to 
impose monetary damages upon the county, its officers, employees and agents arising out of any alleged 
failure or breach of duty or relationship as may now exist or hereafter be created. To the extent any 
permit, plan approval, inspection or similar act is required by the county as a condition precedent to any 
activity by or upon property not owned by the county, pursuant to this or any other regulatory ordinance, 
regulation or rule of the county or under Federal or State law, the issuance of such permit, plan approval, 
or inspection shall not be deemed to constitute a warranty, express or implied, nor shall afford the basis 
for any action, including any action based on failure to permit or negligent issuance of a permit, seeking 
the imposition of money damages against the county, its officers, employees or agents.  


.050 - Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods. 


The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by the county on 
behalf of all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law places necessary and 
appropriate obligations on private property owners as well.  The stormwater utility may provide for 
inspection of private stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities to ascertain that the stormwater 
facilities are functioning as designed and approved.  The stormwater utility may provide for remedial 
maintenance of facilities based severity of stormwater problems and potential hazards to the public 
health, safety and welfare.  If determined by the Stormwater Management Department, unpermitted 
drainage systems, located on private property that are connected to the county’s system, shall be 
permitted and improved by the property owner to ensure proper function to the public drainage system. 
In cases where such remedial maintenance is required the county shall bill the owner of the private 
facility for the costs of such maintenance.  The county shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of 
this ordinance, for its designated officers and employees to enter upon private and public property 
owned by entities other than the county, upon reasonable notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the 
property and conduct surveys and engineering tests thereon in order to assure compliance.   


Any failure to meet the obligations set forth in this Ordinance shall constitute a nuisance and be subject 







   


Page 8 of 12 


to an abatement action filed by the county in the ? Court. In the event a public nuisance is found by the 
Court to exist, which the owner fails to properly abate within such reasonable time as allowed by the 
Court, the county may enter upon the property and cause such work as is reasonably necessary to be 
performed. The actual cost thereof shall be assessed against the owner in the same manner as a tax 
levied against the property.  


The county shall have lien rights from the date of the filing of the abatement action by the county, and 
said lien rights may be perfected through:  


A. A judgment; and 


B. The filing of a writ of fieri facias against all property of the person or entity against whom the 
assessment was made. Upon issuance of said fi. fa., and forwarding of same to the Sheriff, the 
Sheriff shall be authorized pursuant to Georgia law to levy same upon the property of the owner to 
satisfy the amount due on the judgment.  


These enforcement methods shall be perfected by filing a notice of lien on the General Execution 
Docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County. A fi. fa. issued by any court in the State of Georgia can 
be recorded on the General Execution Docket of the Superior Court of any other county in the state in 
which the owner possesses property. When the execution has been entered upon the docket, the lien 
shall date from such entry.  


State law reference—  O.C.G.A. § 9-12-81(b).  


.060 - General Funding Policy. 


A.  It shall be the policy of Fayette County that funding for the stormwater utility is equitably derived 
through methods that have demonstrable relationships to the varied demands and costs imposed on the 
stormwater systems and programs and/or the level of service provided as a result of the provision of 
stormwater services and facilities.  


B. Service charges for stormwater management shall be fair and reasonable and shall bear a 
substantial relationship to the cost of providing services and facilities. The cost of stormwater services 
and facilities may include administrative, operating, capital investment, debt service, engineering and 
planning, and reserve expenses, and may also include related regulatory expenses associated with 
watershed management requirements. Properties shall be charged rentals, rates, charges, fees, or licenses 
in proportion to their related cost of service impact.  


C. Service charge rates shall be designed to be consistent and coordinated with the use of other 
funding methods employed for stormwater management by the county, whether within or outside the 
stormwater utility, including but not limited to plan review and inspection fees, special fees for services, 
fees in-lieu of regulatory requirements, impact fees, system development charges, and special 
assessments.  


.070 - Effective Date of Stormwater Charges. 


Stormwater service charges shall accrue beginning ?and shall be billed periodically, thereafter to 
customers, except as specific exemptions and credits may apply.   







   


Page 9 of 12 


.080 - Stormwater Management Utility Service Charges 


A.  There are hereby established Stormwater Management Utility service charges that shall be billed to 
all properties in unincorporated Fayette County service area, except as specific exemptions or credits 
may allow for in this Ordinance or shall allow in future ordinances or amendments to this Ordinance. 
The Stormwater Management Utility service charges may, but are not required to, include a service rate 
charge applied to each property. The service rate charge, if applied, shall be related generally to the 
amount and quality of runoff discharged to the public stormwater systems and stormwater receiving 
waters and to the costs of services associated with stormwater management. The service charge may also 
include a base rate charge for certain costs of service common to all stormwater management accounts, 
and/or special service charges to persons, entities, or properties that require services and/or facilities not 
commonly needed by all persons, entities, or properties.  


B.  Stormwater user fee charge rates shall be adopted via the rate ordinance and shall bear a substantial 
relationship to the cost of providing stormwater management services. User fee charge rates shall be in 
addition to other rates, charges, or fees employed for stormwater management within the unincorporated 
areas of the county as defined herein.  


C. The service rate charge, if applied, shall be reflective of the cost of providing services and facilities 
to properly control stormwater runoff quantity and quality. The most important factor in the county’s 
present cost of providing stormwater management services and facilities to individual properties is the 
amount of impervious area on each property. 


D. Special service charges, if applied, shall be structured to recover the cost of providing to certain 
persons, entities, and properties types or levels of stormwater management services that are not 
commonly required by all stormwater service charge ratepayers. Such services may include, but are not 
limited to, private development plan review and inspection, site inspections to verify the operational 
condition of on-site stormwater management systems, such as private detention/retention and 
conveyance facilities, monitoring and mitigative activities related to conditions on individual properties 
that impact water quality, and actions to abate conditions on private properties that do not comply with 
adopted county standards and/or that interfere with proper stormwater management and have been 
determined to constitute a public nuisance.  


E. The professional engineering and management analysis conducted for the county determined that 
properties within the county service area that are classified as single-family residential property and non-
single family residential shall  be equitably and fairly charged based on the area of imperviousness 
measured in units of square feet.  


L. Undeveloped parcels shall be considered to not have any impervious area. 


.090 – Credits and Exemptions Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges. 


Except as provided in this Section, no public or private property shall be exempt from stormwater utility 
service charges or receive a credit or offset against such service charges. No exception, credit, offset, or 
other reduction in stormwater service charges shall be granted based on the age, tax, or economic status, 
race, or religion of the customer, or other condition unrelated to the stormwater utility's cost of 
providing stormwater services and facilities. The Fayette County Stormwater Utility Service Charge 







   


Page 10 of 12 


Credit Policy specifying the performance standards of stormwater systems, facilities, activities, and 
services which qualify for application of a service charge credit, and how such credits shall be calculated 
and approved separately by the Board of Commissioners and by reference, incorporated herein.  


A.  Developed land including buy not limited to individual detached dwelling units, multiple dwelling 
unit residential properties, manufactured home and mobile home parks, commercial and office 
buildings, public buildings and structures, industrial and manufacturing buildings, storage buildings and 
storage areas covered with impervious surfaces, parking lots, roads, alleys, and by-ways, parks, 
recreation properties, public and private schools and universities, research stations, hospitals and 
convalescent centers, airports, agricultural uses covered by impervious surfaces, water reservoirs, and 
water and wastewater treatment plans may receive a stormwater service charge credit(s). The stormwater 
service charge credit(s) shall be determined based on the requirements and standards contained in the 
Stormwater Utility Service Charge Credit Policy. The stormwater service charge credit(s) shall be 
proportional to the extent that on-site systems, facilities, services, and activities provided, operated, and 
maintained by the property owner reduce or mitigate the stormwater utility's cost of providing services 
and facilities.  


B. Groups of detached dwelling units represented by an incorporated homeowner's association 
providing on-site systems, facilities, services, or activities which reduce or mitigate the Stormwater 
Utility's cost of providing services and facilities may receive a stormwater service charge credit(s). The 
stormwater service charge credit shall be determined based on the technical requirements and standards 
contained in the Stormwater Utility Service Charge Credit Policy. The stormwater service charge 
credit(s) available to groups of detached dwelling units shall be proportional to the extent that on-site 
systems, facilities, services, and activities provided, operated, and maintained by the homeowners 
association reduce or mitigate the stormwater utility's cost of providing services and facilities.  


C. Any credit allowed against the service charge is conditioned on continuing compliance with the 
county’s performance standards as stated in the Stormwater Utility Service Charge Credit Policy and/or 
upon continuing the provision of the systems, facilities, services, and activities provided, operated, and 
maintained by the property owner or owners upon which the credit is based. A credit may be revoked by 
the county at any time for non-compliance.  


D. All public rights-of-way are exempt from stormwater utility fees. 


.100 - Stormwater Service Charge Billing, Delinquencies, Collections. 


A.  Stormwater Management Utility service charges shall be billed and collected in the manner and at 
the interval deemed most efficient by the county, and shall be payable in accordance with the rules and 
regulations of the Fayette County Finance Department as applied generally to all bills. A stormwater 
service charge bill may be sent through the United States mail or by an alternate means notifying the 
customer of the amount of the bill, the date the payment is due, and the past due date. Failure to receive 
a bill is not justification for nonpayment. Regardless of the party to whom the bill is initially directed, 
the owner of each parcel of land, as shown from public land records, shall be ultimately obligated to pay 
such fee. If a customer is under billed or if no bill is sent, the county may back bill for a period of up to 
one year, but shall not assess penalties for any delinquency. A 1.5 percent per month late charge shall be 
billed based on the unpaid balance of any Stormwater Management Utility service charge that becomes 
delinquent.  







   


Page 11 of 12 


B. The stormwater service charge may be billed on a common statement and collected with other 
utility services through separate bills or any other method by which the county could bill other utility 
customers or property owners.  


C. Any Stormwater Management Utility service charge or portion of a service charge not paid when 
due may be recovered in an action at law or equity by the county.  


D. In addition to any other remedies or penalties provided by this or any other Ordinance of the 
county, failure to pay any utility service charge when billed in conjunction with another Fayette County 
utility bill may result in a discontinuance of any or all other utility services provided by the county. The 
owner of each property, building, premises, lot, or house shall be obligated to pay such fee, which shall 
be enforceable by the county by action at law or equity.  


E. No lien shall be imposed for delinquent collections unless a judgment is first obtained from a court 
of competent jurisdiction. 


F. Suits for collection shall be commenced by the county in the county of the owner's residence; 
provided, however, if the owner is not a resident of this State, suit may be filed in the Superior or State 
Court of Fayette County, Georgia. If a suit is instituted by the county for collection, the owner shall pay 
court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the county.  


G. If suit is instituted for the collection of any fees due hereunder or for the enforcement of this 
Ordinance, the owner shall pay the court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees 
associated therewith.  


.110 - Appeals.  


Any customer who believes the provisions of this Article have been applied in error may appeal in the 
following manner:  


A. An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Stormwater Utility Director. In the 
case of service charge appeals, the appeal shall include a survey prepared by a registered land 
surveyor or professional engineer containing information on the total property area, the impervious 
surface area, and any other features or conditions which influence the hydrologic response of the 
property to rainfall events.  


B. Based on the information provided, a technical review shall be conducted by the Stormwater 
Utility Director of the Stormwater Management Utility and a written determination will be issued 
within thirty (30) days stating whether an adjustment to the service charge is appropriate and, if so, 
the amount of such adjustment.  


C. In response to an appeal, the Stormwater Utility Director may adjust the stormwater service 
charge applicable to a property in conformance with the general purpose and intent of this chapter.  


D. A decision of the Stormwater Utility Director which is adverse to an appellant may be further 
appealed to the Director’s supervisor within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of the adverse 
decision. Notice of the appeal shall be served on the Director’s supervisor by the appellant, stating 
the grounds for the appeal. The Director’s supervisor shall issue a written decision on the appeal 







   


Page 12 of 12 


within thirty (30) days. All decisions of the Director’s supervisor shall be served on the appellant 
personally or by registered or certified mail, sent to the billing address of the appellant.  


E. If the person or entity seeking adjustment or relief from the service charge desires, the 
decision of the Stormwater Management Director’s supervisor may be appealed in writing to the 
Board of Commissioners. Such appeals must be made within thirty (30) days of the decision of the 
Director’s supervisor and include a written basis for the appeal. The decision of the Board of 
Commissioners shall be final.  


F. This appeal process shall not interfere with the rights of the person or entity to seek judicial 
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction, but shall be exhausted before judicial relief is pursued. 
Any appeal to the Superior Court of Fayette County must be filed within thirty (30) days of the 
decision of the Board of Commissioners.  


G. Notices of the appeal and decisions shall be served personally or delivered by registered or 
certified mail to the address of record.  







Ye
ar


 1
Ye


ar
 2


Ye
ar


 3
Ye


ar
 4


Ye
ar


 5


R
EV


EN
U


E
St


or
m


w
at


er
 U


til
ity


 R
ev


en
ue


N
um


be
r o


f R
E


R
U


s 
(A


)1
15


7,
00


8
15


8,
57


8
16


0,
16


4
16


1,
76


5
16


3,
38


3
M


on
th


ly
 C


ha
rg


e 
pe


r R
ER


U
 ($


) (
B


)
$0


.6
8


$0
.6


8
$0


.7
5


$0
.7


5
$0


.7
5


A
ve


ra
ge


 M
on


th
ly


 C
ha


rg
e 


fo
r 6


,4
00


 s
q.


 ft
. h


om
e2


$4
.0


8
$4


.0
8


$4
.5


0
$4


.5
0


$4
.5


0
Ye


ar
ly


 C
ha


rg
e 


fo
r 6


,4
00


 s
q.


 ft
. h


om
e


$4
8.


96
$4


8.
96


$5
4.


00
$5


4.
00


$5
4.


00
YE


A
R


LY
 G


R
O


SS
 U


TI
LI


TY
 R


EV
EN


U
E 


(A
*B


)*
12


$1
,2


81
,1


85
$1


,2
93


,9
97


$1
,4


41
,4


75
$1


,4
55


,8
89


$1
,4


70
,4


48
R


ev
en


ue
 A


dd
iti


on
s3


$0
$1


06
,7


18
$5


7,
80


8
$7


4,
06


8
$1


03
,6


89
R


ev
en


ue
 R


ed
uc


tio
ns


4
($


12
8,


11
9)


($
12


9,
40


0)
($


14
4,


14
7)


($
14


5,
58


9)
($


14
7,


04
5)


YE
A


R
 N


ET
 R


EV
EN


U
E 


FO
R


 S
W


M
P 


(C
)


$1
,1


53
,0


66
$1


,2
71


,3
15


$1
,3


55
,1


35
$1


,3
84


,3
68


$1
,4


27
,0


92
EX


PE
N


SE
S


A
dm


in
is


tr
at


io
n


$7
9,


05
9


$8
1,


43
1


$8
3,


87
4


$8
6,


39
0


$8
8,


98
2


En
vi


ro
nm


en
ta


l E
nf


or
ce


m
en


t a
nd


 C
om


pl
ia


nc
e


$3
53


,8
10


$3
60


,8
87


$3
68


,1
04


$3
75


,4
67


$3
82


,9
76


O
pe


ra
tio


ns
 &


 M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


$1
28


,0
42


$2
61


,8
72


$2
68


,4
59


$2
75


,2
19


$2
82


,1
55


D
ire


ct
 C


ap
ita


l O
ut


la
y


$5
17


,4
67


$5
41


,6
67


$5
96


,6
67


$5
80


,0
00


$6
05


,0
00


YE
A


R
 E


XP
EN


SE
S 


(D
)


$1
,0


78
,3


78
$1


,2
45


,8
57


$1
,3


17
,1


04
$1


,3
17


,0
76


$1
,3


59
,1


13


YE
A


R
-E


N
D


 F
U


N
D


 B
A


LA
N


C
E 


= 
C


-D
$7


4,
68


8
$2


5,
45


8
$3


8,
03


1
$6


7,
29


2
$6


7,
97


9


1 
- R


E
R


U
 =


 R
ou


nd
ed


 E
qu


iv
al


en
t R


es
id


en
tia


l U
ni


t (
Im


pe
rv


io
us


 a
re


a/
10


00
 s


q.
 ft


.) 
an


d 
1%


 in
cr


ea
se


 in
 R


E
R


U
 p


er
 y


ea
r f


or
 n


ew
 im


pe
rv


io
us


 a
re


a
2 


- A
ve


ra
ge


 S
iz


e 
Im


pe
rv


io
us


 a
re


a 
fo


r a
 S


in
gl


e 
Fa


m
ily


 R
es


id
en


tia
l L


ot
 in


 U
ni


nc
or


po
ra


te
d 


Fa
ye


tte
 C


ou
nt


y
2 


- Y
ea


r-
E


nd
 F


un
d 


B
al


an
ce


 a
nd


 D
el


in
qu


en
cy


 C
ol


le
ct


io
ns


 (h
al


f o
f p


er
vi


ou
s 


ye
ar


)
3 


- 5
%


 D
el


in
qu


en
ci


es
 a


nd
 5


%
 C


re
di


ts


Fa
ye


tte
 C


ou
nt


y 
St


or
m


w
at


er
 M


an
ag


em
en


t P
ro


gr
am


 - 
Pr


el
im


in
ar


y 
R


at
e 


St
ud


y



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment C







~2003 to Present Various presentations to BOC exploring opportunities for the Stormwater 
Management Program. 


March 5, 2008 (Workshop) – Presentation on regulatory permits, stormwater system 
components, extent and level of service concepts, user-fee funding mechanism.


January 22, 2009 (Retreat) Presentation given on the current status of the Stormwater 
infrastructure, funding options and a stormwater utility overview.  


February 12, 2009 (Public Meeting) –The Engineering Department invited local jurisdictions 
to give additional information to the Commissioners in an open discussion format, including: 


•Erik Lombard, Director of the Henry County Stormwater Utility, 
•Jim Luebbering, Director  of Public Works for Henry County 
•Brant Keller, Director Public Works & Utilities for the City of Griffin,


August 5, 2009 (Workshop) – Discussion of staff’s recommendation to conduct a 
Stormwater Funding Feasibility Study.


August 13, 2009 (Public Meeting) Approval of staff's recommendation to issue a RFP for 
the performance of a Stormwater Funding Feasibility Study


December 10, 2009 (Public Meeting) County approved ISE to develop a Stormwater 
Funding Feasibility Study.  



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment D







 
Integrated Science & Engineering  Page 1 of 5 


FAYETTE COUNTY  
STORMWATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
POSITION PAPER 
 
 
At the direction of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners a stakeholders group of citizens 
from unincorporated Fayette County, Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey was formed to evaluate the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Program (SWMP).  This committee’s purpose was to 
provide the Board of Commissioners their perspective and give recommendations regarding 
implementation of an expanded SWMP to meet future stormwater challenges facing Fayette 
County. This document summarizes the findings and recommendations of this committee. 
 
Committee Creation and Operation 
Fayette County stakeholders and volunteer citizens having diverse backgrounds and knowledge 
participated on the Stormwater Advisory Committee. Committee members are listed below along 
with the stakeholder group they represent.  
 
    Meeting 


Name  Stakeholder Group  1  2  3  4 
Bill Webb  Key Club/Kiwanis/Rivers Alive             


Jeff West  Fayette County Asst. Road Director             


Beth Vaughn  Town of Tyrone ‐ Stormwater             


Virginia Gibbs  Fayette Chamber Of Commerce             


Joe Myers  Citizen/Solicitors Office             


Osvaldo Sanchez  Citizen with Flooding Problems             


Brad Barnard  Builder/Developer             


Dan Langford  Brooks ‐ Mayor             


Don Easterbrook 
Citizen/Engineer/Stormwater Director 
Fayetteville             


Pete Nelms  Fayette County EMS             


Courtney Nolan  Citizen/Engineer             


Craig Gross  Citizen/Extension Agent             


Bob Dixon  Builder/Developer             


Scott Price  Citizen             


Warren Huddleston  Minister of Providence United Methodist Church             


Jerry Young  Pastor Of Fayette Family Church             


Tony Parrott  Director,  Fayette County Water System             


Dennis Chase  Environmentalist             


Steve Brown  County Commissioner             


Robert Horgan  County Commissioner             


Don Rehwaldt  Town of Tyrone ‐ Mayor             


Gloria Furr  Town of Tyrone ‐  Town Council             


Richard Newbern  Town of Tyrone  ‐ City Manager             



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment E







FUTURE STORMWATER PROGRAM DIRECTION OPINION 
Fayette County Stormwater Stakeholder Advisory Committee 
May 3, 2011  09037.02 
 
 


 
Integrated Science & Engineering  Page 2 of 5 


 
    Meeting 


Name  Stakeholder Group  1  2  3  4 
Grace Caldwell  Citizen             


D Barlow  Citizen             


Shana Slay  Citizen             


Dale Phenicie  Citizen             


Tim Thoms  Citizen/State Water Board Advisory Member             


Penny Hunter  Town of Tyrone             
Sharon  Boyer*  Fayette Co. Schools             
Lisa Perrett*  Georgia EPD Municipal Stormwater             
Huie Bray*  Brooks/Miniwarehouse             
Gary Laggis*  Woosley ‐ Mayor             
Angela Hinton  Fonda*  North Fayette Community Association               
Mike Bell*  M and S Auto Salvage             
Frank James*  Stream Bank Mitigation             
* ‐ Citizens invited to the committee but unable to attend             


 
In order to accomplish their task of recommending to the Board of Commissioners on how to 
proceed with an expanded Stormwater Management Program, the committee assessed the current 
program, recommended goals for an improved program, and assessed funding alternatives to 
meet these goals. 
 
The following questions were utilized to engage the committee in dialogue to better assess and 
make recommendations about the future of the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
program: 
 


• What is Fayette County currently doing in terms of stormwater management? 
• What are stormwater related problems, issues, and needs currently faced by Fayette 


County? 
• What extent-of-service and level-of-service should guide the Stormwater Management 


program? 
• What is (are) the best way(s) to pay for these program improvements? 
• How should the importance of stormwater management be presented to the general 


public? 
 
Committee meetings were developed and facilitated by Integrated Science and Engineering who 
prepared the Stormwater Funding Feasibility Analysis for the county. 
 
Current Stormwater Program 
Current funding for the Stormwater Management Program is through the general fund.  The 
county spends approximately $436,000 annually on the Stormwater Management Program. 
Funding for administrative, program implementation, permit compliance and customer service 
are budgeted annually as operating expenses of the Stormwater Management Department.  







FUTURE STORMWATER PROGRAM DIRECTION OPINION 
Fayette County Stormwater Stakeholder Advisory Committee 
May 3, 2011  09037.02 
 
 


 
Integrated Science & Engineering  Page 3 of 5 


Complaint-driven operation and maintenance is budgeted within Public Works annual budget.  If 
a problem cannot be corrected from within this budget it is placed on a Stormwater Improvement 
Project list.  Currently there are over 53 Stormwater Improvement Projects. 
 
The committee discussed the root cause for mounting stormwater problems.  This is due to lack 
of adequate resources to perform master planning necessary to provide regular operation and 
maintenance and replacement of failing infrastructure. Other institutional issues were discussed 
that included public awareness and education; and water quality management.   
 
Throughout the United States there are two potential primary funding sources for stormwater 
management programs: general funds or an equitable stormwater user fee (stormwater utility). 
The committee noted the following advantages and disadvantages of each: 
 


Revenue 
Source 


Advantages  Disadvantages 


General Fund 


• Generally accepted by the Public as a 
viable means of funding a 
stormwater management program 


• Low administrative cost since billing 
mechanisms are already in place 


• Enforcement of payment clearly 
defined in existing laws 


• Property tax portion of general fund is 
deductible on federal or state 
income tax 


 


• General fund taxes are based on 
non-stormwater related 
indicators such as property 
value, sales tax, etc. 


• Property tax portion of general fund 
bills all taxable properties in 
Fayette County including 
those in Fayetteville, 
Peachtree City and Tyrone 
which do not receive 
Stormwater Services from the 
Fayette County government 


• Tax exempt properties that 
significantly contribute runoff 
do not pay property taxes into 
Stormwater Program 
increasing burden on other 
properties 


• No credits are available to reduce 
costs to property owner by 
recognizing efforts to reduce 
stormwater runoff 


• General fund revenues are not 
legally dedicated to 
stormwater management and 
must compete with other 
functions to be adequately 
funded 







FUTURE STORMWATER PROGRAM DIRECTION OPINION 
Fayette County Stormwater Stakeholder Advisory Committee 
May 3, 2011  09037.02 
 
 


 
Integrated Science & Engineering  Page 4 of 5 


Revenue 
Source 


Advantages  Disadvantages 


Stormwater 
Utility User Fee 


• Distributes costs to all developed 
parcels (including Tax Exempt) 
within the service district of the 
Stormwater Utility only 


• Equitably distributes costs based on 
the amount of impervious surface 
area on the property 


• Revenues are legally dedicated to 
stormwater functions only 


• Credits reduce fee by recognizing 
property owners’ efforts to reduce 
stormwater runoff 


• Stable revenue source not subject to 
property values or sales tax 
revenue fluctuations 


• Costs can be divided into monthly, 
quarterly or annual payments 


• Perceived as a rain tax 


• Fee is not tax deductible on federal 
or state income tax like 
property taxes 


• Can have a high administrative 
cost compared to general 
fund revenue sources 


• Enforcement of payment can be 
burdensome if not tied to 
other utility services 


 
Under a user fee system, properties are billed based on the amount of impervious (paved areas, 
roofs, driveways, etc,) area on their property. Impervious area is related to the amount of demand 
each property puts on the county’s drainage system. A user fee was deemed as flexible and 
intuitively fair, in that those who impact the system the most pay the most. With this system, 
credits can also be given for detention ponds, open space, landscaped areas and other practices, 
thus stimulating sound development and maintenance.  
 
Stormwater Program Improvement Recommendations 
The committee concluded that the Stormwater Management Program should actively reinvest in 
stormwater infrastructure for the long-term cost saving benefit to the County.  This increased 
level-of-service should be funded through an equitable dedicated user fee based on impervious 
area.  Revenue from stormwater user fees should be placed in an enterprise fund dedicated 
mainly to stormwater infrastructure improvements and operations and maintenance.  


 
The committee developed the following recommended action items and activities to achieve the 
overall goal of improving the Stormwater Management Program.  
 


1. Extent and Level of Service   
Stormwater infrastructure improvements and operations and maintenance should be limited 
to county-owned properties and right-of-way.  All county stormwater drainage system 
components should be inventoried and inspected every five years.  Stormwater Infrastructure 
within county-owned properties and right-of-way should be replaced, rehabilitated or 
upgraded based on a ranking system with priority given to public safety concerns.  
 
All privately-owned drainage systems including detention ponds should be maintained by the 
owner.    Unpermitted drainage systems, located on private property that are connected to the 







FUTURE STORMWATER PROGRAM DIRECTION OPINION 
Fayette County Stormwater Stakeholder Advisory Committee 
May 3, 2011  09037.02 
 
 


 
Integrated Science & Engineering  Page 5 of 5 


county’s system, should be permitted and improved by the property owner, if warranted, to 
ensure proper function of the public drainage system.  If an unmaintained privately owned 
system negatively impacts the county’s drainage system, a fine should be administered.  
Private inspection and maintenance records should only be required by the county where 
neglected conditions could impact downstream property or roads. 
 
2. Public Involvement and Education  
Education and outreach should become a significant function of the program using effective 
communication measures such as print and web-based media.  While staff currently has a 
limited outreach program, more resources should be allocated to improve the program. 
 
3. Water Quality Management 
Develop an active water quality management program to include a monitoring program to 
identify and correct problems.  The county should also partner with private organizations 
and/or individuals to correct water quality issues where appropriate. 
 
4. Operations and Maintenance 
Complete the inventory of the stormwater drainage system to adequately develop a more 
proactive approach to maintenance of the stormwater drainage system including a 
preventative maintenance program. 
 
5. Capital Construction 
Systematically plan, design, and construct capital projects to correct functional and capacity 
problems of the stormwater drainage system as well as replace deteriorated drainage systems 
that can not be repaired with other methods. 
 
6. Administration  
Funding from stormwater user fees for additional staff should be limited to resources needed 
for an improved operation and maintenance program.  A checks and balance system should 
be established through reauthorization of the stormwater user fee every five years.  Prior to 
this reauthorization, a neutral citizen’s advisory committee should provide a recommendation 
on the matter to the Board of Commissioners.  Initial user fees during the first authorization 
period should range from $40 to $60 per typical residential property per year with 
proportional charges for nonresidential properties. 
 
 


 







EX
PE


N
SE


Ye
ar


 1
Ye


ar
 2


Ye
ar


 3
Ye


ar
 4


Ye
ar


 5
AD


M
IN


IS
TR


AT
IO


N
E


nt
er


pr
is


e 
Fu


nc
tio


ns
 (L


eg
al


, F
in


an
ci


al
, H


R
, e


tc
.)


5.
00


%
$6


4,
05


9 
/ Y


ea
r


$6
4,


05
9


$6
5,


98
1


$6
7,


96
0


$6
9,


99
9


$7
2,


09
9


B
ill 


P
re


pa
ra


tio
n


$1
5,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


5,
00


0
$1


5,
45


0
$1


5,
91


4
$1


6,
39


1
$1


6,
88


3
$7


9,
05


9
$8


1,
43


1
$8


3,
87


4
$8


6,
39


0
$8


8,
98


2
EN


VI
R


O
N


M
EN


TA
L 


EN
FO


R
C


EM
EN


T 
AN


D
 C


O
M


PL
IA


N
C


E
R


at
e


C
os


t
Pe


rs
on


ne
l /


 O
ve


rh
ea


d1


S
to


rm
w


at
er


 D
ire


ct
or


 (e
xi


st
in


g)
$6


7,
00


0 
/ Y


ea
r


0.
50


 F
TE


$8
2,


41
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$4


1,
20


5
$4


2,
02


9
$4


2,
87


0
$4


3,
72


7
$4


4,
60


2
E


nv
iro


nm
en


ta
l P


ro
gr


am
s 


E
ng


in
ee


r  
(e


xi
st


in
g)


$6
5,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
1.


00
 F


TE
$7


9,
95


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$7
9,


95
0


$8
1,


54
9


$8
3,


18
0


$8
4,


84
4


$8
6,


54
1


E
nv


iro
nm


en
ta


l T
ec


h 
 (e


xi
st


in
g)


$4
1,


50
0 


/ Y
ea


r
1.


00
 F


TE
$5


1,
04


5 
/ Y


ea
r


$5
1,


04
5


$5
2,


06
6


$5
3,


10
7


$5
4,


16
9


$5
5,


25
2


E
nv


iro
nm


en
ta


l T
ec


h 
 (e


xi
st


in
g)


$4
4,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
0.


75
 F


TE
$5


4,
12


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$4
0,


59
0


$4
1,


40
2


$4
2,


23
0


$4
3,


07
5


$4
3,


93
7


E
ng


in
ee


rin
g 


Te
ch


  (
ex


is
tin


g)
$4


2,
00


0 
/ Y


ea
r


0.
75


 F
TE


$5
1,


66
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$3


8,
74


5
$3


9,
52


0
$4


0,
31


0
$4


1,
11


6
$4


1,
93


8
S


en
io


r E
nv


iro
nm


en
ta


l T
ec


h 
(r


ei
ns


ta
te


d)
$4


7,
50


0 
/ Y


ea
r


1.
00


 F
TE


$5
8,


42
5 


/ Y
ea


r
$5


8,
42


5
$5


9,
59


4
$6


0,
78


6
$6


2,
00


2
$6


3,
24


2
O


pe
ra


tio
ns


G
en


er
al


 S
up


pl
ie


s
$1


5,
00


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$1
5,


00
0


$1
5,


30
0


$1
5,


60
6


$1
5,


91
8


$1
6,


23
6


G
IS


 E
qu


ip
/C


om
pu


te
rs


/S
of


tw
ar


e
$1


5,
60


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$1
5,


60
0


$1
5,


91
2


$1
6,


23
0


$1
6,


55
5


$1
6,


88
6


P
ub


lic
 O


ut
re


ac
h/


 C
om


pl
ia


nc
e


$1
0,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


0,
00


0
$1


0,
20


0
$1


0,
40


4
$1


0,
61


2
$1


0,
82


4
A


dv
er


tis
in


g 
$1


,0
00


 / 
Ye


ar
$1


,0
00


$1
,0


20
$1


,0
40


$1
,0


61
$1


,0
82


C
om


m
un


ic
at


io
n 


S
er


vi
ce


s
$2


,2
50


 / 
Ye


ar
$2


,2
50


$2
,2


95
$2


,3
41


$2
,3


88
$2


,4
36


$3
53


,8
10


$3
60


,8
87


$3
68


,1
04


$3
75


,4
67


$3
82


,9
76


O
PE


R
AT


IO
N


S 
&


 M
AI


N
TE


N
AN


C
E


Pe
rs


on
ne


l /
 O


ve
rh


ea
d1


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 C
re


w
C


re
w


 L
ea


de
r (


pr
op


os
ed


)
$2


0.
00


 / 
H


ou
r


1.
00


 F
TE


$5
4,


08
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$2


7,
04


0
$5


5,
16


2
$5


6,
26


5
$5


7,
39


0
$5


8,
53


8
La


bo
re


r (
pr


op
os


ed
)


$1
4.


50
 / 


H
ou


r
1.


00
 F


TE
$3


9,
20


8 
/ Y


ea
r


$1
9,


60
4


$3
9,


99
2


$4
0,


79
2


$4
1,


60
8


$4
2,


44
0


La
bo


re
r (


pr
op


os
ed


)
$1


1.
50


 / 
H


ou
r


1.
00


 F
TE


$3
1,


09
6 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


5,
54


8
$3


1,
71


8
$3


2,
35


2
$3


2,
99


9
$3


3,
65


9
O


pe
ra


tio
ns


M
at


er
ia


ls
 (P


ip
e,


 R
ip


-R
ap


, C
on


cr
et


e,
 H


ea
dw


al
ls


, e
tc


)
$2


,0
00


 / 
M


on
th


$2
4,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


2,
00


0
$2


4,
00


0
$2


4,
72


0
$2


5,
46


2
$2


6,
22


6
O


pe
ra


tio
ns


 (F
ue


l, 
M


ai
nt


, T
oo


ls
, D


is
po


sa
l F


ee
s,


 e
tc


.)
$2


,2
75


 / 
M


on
th


$2
7,


30
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


3,
65


0
$2


7,
30


0
$2


8,
11


9
$2


8,
96


3
$2


9,
83


2
E


qu
ip


m
en


t R
en


ta
l


$1
,7


00
 / 


M
on


th
$2


0,
40


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$1
0,


20
0


$2
0,


40
0


$2
1,


01
2


$2
1,


64
2


$2
2,


29
1


Je
t/V


ac
 S


er
vi


ce
s


$1
,7


00
 / 


M
on


th
$2


0,
40


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$2
0,


40
0


$2
1,


01
2


$2
1,


64
2


$2
2,


29
1


P
ip


e 
V


id
eo


 S
er


vi
ce


s
$1


,0
00


 / 
M


on
th


$1
2,


00
0 


/ Y
ea


r
$1


2,
00


0
$1


2,
36


0
$1


2,
73


1
$1


3,
11


3
O


ut
so


ur
ce


d 
M


ai
nt


en
an


ce
$3


0,
00


0 
/ Y


ea
r


$3
0,


00
0


$3
0,


90
0


$3
1,


82
7


$3
2,


78
2


$3
3,


76
5


$1
28


,0
42


$2
61


,8
72


$2
68


,4
59


$2
75


,2
19


$2
82


,1
55


D
IR


EC
T 


C
AP


IT
AL


 O
U


TL
AY


O
&


M
 C


re
w


 T
ru


ck
$2


5,
80


0
Fl


oo
d 


P
la


in
 M


ap
pi


ng
$1


00
,0


00
$1


00
,0


00
$1


00
,0


00
C


ul
ve


rt 
R


ep
la


ce
m


en
ts


\C
ul


ve
rt 


Li
ni


ng
$7


5,
00


0
$7


5,
00


0
$7


5,
00


0
$1


25
,0


00
$1


25
,0


00
C


IP
 p


ro
je


ct
s


$1
75


,0
00


$1
75


,0
00


R
ep


ay
m


en
t o


f S
W


 U
til


ity
 S


et
up


$1
00


,0
00


$5
0,


00
0


G
en


er
al


 F
un


d 
P


ay
ba


ck
  Y


ea
r 1


 C
IP


 p
ro


je
ct


s
$1


75
,0


00
$2


00
,0


00
$2


00
,0


00
$2


25
,0


00
G


en
er


al
 F


un
d 


P
ay


ba
ck


 E
qu


ip
m


en
t C


os
ts


$1
41


,6
67


$1
41


,6
67


$1
41


,6
67


O
ffi


ce
 T


ra
ile


r a
nd


 P
ol


l B
ar


n 
S


to
ra


ge
$7


5,
00


0
D


riv
ew


ay
 C


ul
ve


rt 
R


ep
la


ce
m


en
t P


ro
gr


am
$4


0,
00


0
$4


0,
00


0
$4


0,
00


0
H


om
e 


O
w


ne
r S


up
pl


y 
P


ro
gr


am
$4


0,
00


0
$4


0,
00


0
$4


0,
00


0


$5
17


,4
67


$5
41


,6
67


$5
96


,6
67


$5
80


,0
00


$6
05


,0
00


$1
,0


78
,3


78
$1


,2
45


,8
57


$1
,3


17
,1


04
$1


,3
17


,0
76


$1
,3


59
,1


13
1 


- P
er


so
nn


el
 B


en
ef


it 
A


dj
us


tm
en


t o
f 2


%
  T


ot
al


 C
os


t o
f S


er
vi


ce
s


Fa
ye


tte
 C


ou
nt


y 
St


or
m


w
at


er
 M


an
ag


em
en


t P
ro


gr
am


Pr
op


os
ed


 5
 - 


Ye
ar


 O
pe


ra
tio


ns
 P


la
n


  D
ire


ct
 C


ap
ita


l o
ut


la
y 


Su
bt


ot
al


O
pe


ra
tio


ns
 &


 M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 S
ub


to
ta


l


 E
nv


iro
nm


en
ta


l E
nf


or
ce


m
en


t a
nd


 C
om


pl
ia


nc
e 


 S
ub


to
ta


l


A
dm


in
is


tr
at


io
n 


Su
bt


ot
al



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment F







Equipment Price
Grade All/CAT Rubber Tire (Used) $200,000
Track hoe and Trailer $65,000
Dump Truck $80,000
Jet Truck $65,000
Hydroseeder $15,000
Total $425,000
Payment to General Fund per year (3 years) ($141,666.67)


Operations and Maintenance
Equipment 







A
D


M
IN


7%


En
vi


ro
nm


en
ta


l 
En


fo
rc


em
en


t 
an


d 
Co


m
pl


ia
nc


e
30


%


O
PE


RA
TI


O
N


S 
&


 
M


A
IN


TE
N


A
N


CE
19


%


D
IR


EC
T 


CA
PI


TA
L 


O
U


TL
AY


45
%


ST
O


RM
W


AT
ER


 M
A


N
A


G
EM


EN
T 


FU
N


CT
IO


N
A


L 
A


RE
A


S



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment G







TITLE:  Senior Environmental Technician  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Stormwater Management, Fayette County 
 
JOB SUMMARY:  This position is responsible for environmental program implementation, 
implementing the stormwater system inventory and inspections program to include maintaining 
stormwater systems database, responding to customer service requests, and assisting with plan 
preparation and report writing. 
 
MAJOR DUTIES: 
 


o Implements the Fayette County Stormwater Management Inventory and Inspection 
Program; maps the Fayette County stormwater infrastructure; conducts public 
education and outreach programs; conducts training for county departments; conducts 
public participation activities; conducts stream walks and inspections stormwater 
outfall and county stormwater facilities. 


 
o Conducts stormwater system inventory and inspections to meet regional and state 


compliance programs.   
 
o  Runs GIS computer software, graphic software, GPS data collectors, and basic 


surveying equipment to support stormwater management  functions. Investigates 
customer service requests relating to stormwater systems inventory management; 
updates attribute datbases; inputs field inventory and inspection data; rectifies data 
errors from field inspections. 


 
o Receives and responds to complaints from citizens regarding stormwater management 


systems and inspects for compliance with county ordinances administered by the 
Stormwater Management Department. 


 
o Notifies developers, contractors, and property owners of inspection results and 


correction requirements; issues and posts notices of violations, stop work orders and 
citations; re-inspects sites to insure compliance. 


 
o Prepares and maintains accurate reports and records. 
 
o Performs other related duties as assigned. 


 
KNOWLEDGE REQUIRED BY THE POSITION: 
         


o Knowledge of federal, state, and local laws and regulations applicable to stormwater 
management. 


 
o Knowledge of the goals and objectives of EPD and EPA watershed protection  
 programs. 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment H







Senior Environmental Technician, Engineering 
Page 2  


o Knowledge of GIS software and methods for updating graphics databases.  
 
 o Skill in reading and assessing construction drawings, specifications, and plats. 
 
 o Skill in the interpretation and application of regulations and standards. 


 
o Skill in public and interpersonal relations. 


 
o Skill in oral and written communication. 


 
SUPERVISORY CONTROLS:  The Stormwater Management Director assigns work in terms of 
general instructions. The supervisor spot-checks completed work for compliance with 
procedures, accuracy, and the nature and propriety of the final results. 
 
GUIDELINES:  Guidelines include county development regulations; state laws pertaining to 
stormwater management and watershed protection; federal laws pertaining to watershed 
protection, wetlands, and flood plain management. These guidelines require judgment, selection, 
and interpretation in application.  
 
COMPLEXITY:  The work consists of varied technical duties. Frequent changes to regulations 
contribute to the complexity of the position. 
 
SCOPE AND EFFECT:  The purpose of this position is to implement stormwater management 
programs for the county. Success in this position contributes to the enforcement of county 
regulations. 
 
PERSONAL CONTACTS:  Contacts are typically with other county personnel, developers, 
builders, property owners, citizens groups, homeowners’ association members, students, co-
workers, state agents, and members of the general public. 
 
PURPOSE OF CONTACTS:  Contacts are typically to give or exchange information; resolve 
problems; provide services; and motivate and influence persons. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS:  The work is typically performed while sitting at a desk or table or 
while standing or walking. 
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT:  The work is typically performed in an office or outdoors. The 
employee may be exposed to dust, dirt, grease, and occasional cold or inclement weather. 
 
 
 
 
 







Senior Environmental Technician, Engineering 
Page 3  
SPECIAL CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES: Possession of a valid State of Georgia driver's 
license (Class C) and a satisfactory Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) in compliance with County 
Safety and Loss Control Guidelines. Completion of the State of Georgia Department of 
Transportation Defensive Driving Course and/or Emergency Vehicle Operation Certification 
within twelve (12) months of employment.  
  
ADA COMPLIANCE: Fayette County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  ADA requires the  
County to provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities. 
Prospective and current employees are invited to discuss accommodations.  
  
HIPAA COMPLIANCE: The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as 
amended, requires employees to protect the security of Protected Health Information (PHI) 
however it is obtained, handled, learned, heard or viewed in the course of their work.  
  
DRUG AND ALCOHOL COMPLIANCE: In accordance of Fayette County's Substance Abuse 
Policy of 1996, as amended, all job applicants offered employment will undergo testing for the 
presence of illegal drugs and alcohol as a condition of employment. In the course of 
employment, employees are subject to random, reasonable suspicion, post accident and routine 
fitness for duty testing for illegal drugs and alcohol abuse. Employees are prohibited to work  
under the influence, to possess, to distribute or to sell illegal drugs in the work place or abuse 
alcohol on the job. Confirmed positive is reason for denial of employment and/or termination. 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 


 
o Knowledge and level of competency commonly associated with completion of 


specialized training in the field of work, in addition to basic skills typically associated 
with a high school education. 


 
o Sufficient experience to understand the basic principles relevant to the major duties of 


the position, usually associated with the completion of an apprenticeship/internship or 
having had a similar position for two to three years. 


 
o Possession of or ability to readily obtain a valid driver's licenses issued by the State of 


Georgia for the type of vehicle or equipment operated. 
 





		Stormwater- Management Funding Agenda Request File.pdf

		Stormwater- Management Funding Backup

		Staff Recommendation to BOC.pdf

		(a) SIPs

		MS4 Inspections

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		MS4 Inspection Results

		Stormwater Improvement Projects

		Stormwater Improvement Projects

		Stormwater Improvement Projects

		Slide Number 9

		Stormwater Improvement Projects

		SIP-08 135 Merrydale Drive

		�SIP-35 Amenities Area Millpond Manor�

		�SIP-19 Crabapple Undersized Pipe�

		The Unknowns



		(b) Draft  Stormwater Management Ordinance

		(c) Draft Rate Study fr bdk 6-27-2011

		Rate Model



		(d) Previous Presentations

		(e) Advisory Committee Recommendation 

		(f) Proposed Operations 

		Cost of Service

		Equipment CIP Ammoritization



		(g)Functional Area Chart

		Function Areas % Exp



		(h) Envir Tech Position Description









